SEACOAST BANKING CORP OF FLORIDA
Form DEF 14A
April 08, 2014

SCHEDULE 14-A				
(Rule 14a-101)				
INFORMATION REQUIRED IN PROXY STATE	EMENT			
SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION				
Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the				
Securities Exchange Act of 1934				
Filed by the Registrant x				
Filed by a Party other than the Registrant "				
Check the appropriate box:				
" Preliminary Proxy Statement x Definitive Proxy Statement	"Confidential, for use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14(a)-6(e)(2))			
" Definitive Additional Materials " Soliciting Material Pursuant to Section 240.14a-12	parimuos ej 11010 1 1(u) e(e)(=)/			
2				
SEACOAST BANKING CORPORATION OF FLO	ORIDA			
(Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)				
(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than Registrant)				
Payment of Filing Fee (check the appropriate box):				

x No fee required

" Fee o	" Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and 0-11				
1)	Title of each class of	f securities to which transaction applies:			
2)	Aggregate number of	of securities to which transaction applies:			
Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (Set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined.):					
4)	Proposed max	ximum aggregate value of transaction:			
	5)	Total fee paid:			
	Fee paid pro	eviously with preliminary materials.			
	id previously. Identify the	Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify previous filing by registration statement			
1) Amount Previously Paid:					
2)Form, Schedule, or Registration	on Statement No.:				
	3)	Filing Party:			
	4)	Date Filed:			

April 9, 2014

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SEACOAST BANKING CORPORATION OF FLORIDA:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida, which will be held at the Wolf Technology Center, 2400 S.E. Salerno Road, Stuart, Florida, on Wednesday, May 21, 2014, at 3:00 P.M., Local Time.

Details regarding the business to be conducted at the meeting are described in the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials ("Notice") you received in the mail and in this proxy statement. We have also made available a copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period year ended ending December 31, 2013 ("Annual Report") which we encourage you to read. The Annual Report includes our audited financial statements and provides information about our business.

We have elected to provide access to our proxy materials over the internet under the Securities and Exchange Commission's "Notice and Access" rules. We are continually focused on improving the way people connect with information, and believe that providing our proxy materials over the internet increases the ability of our shareholders to connect with the information they need, while reducing the environmental impact of our annual meeting. You may also request to receive a printed or emailed set of proxy materials. If you want more information, please see the "Questions and Answers" section of this proxy statement.

Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting, we hope you will vote as soon as possible. You may vote over the internet, as well as by telephone. You also may vote your shares by requesting a paper proxy card and completing, signing and returning it by mail. Please review the instructions on each of your voting options described in this proxy statement, as well as in the Notice you received in the mail. By voting prior to the meeting, you will help us ensure that we have a quorum and that your preferences will be expressed on the matters that are being considered. If you are able to attend the meeting, you may vote your shares in person, even if you have previously voted by another means by revoking your proxy vote at any time prior to its exercise.

Thank you for your ongoing support. We look forward to your participation in our annual meeting.

Sincerely,

Dennis S. Hudson, III Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

815 Colorado Avenue Stuart, Florida 34994	
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON MAY 21, 2014	
Notice is hereby given that the 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida ("Seacoast" or the "Company") will be held at the Wolf Technology Center, 2400 S.E. Salerno Road, Stuart, Flori Wednesday, May 21, 2014, at 3:00 P.M., Local Time (collectively, with any adjournments or postponements, the "Annual Meeting"), for the following purposes:	
1. Election of Directors. To re-elect four Class III directors, elect two Class II directors and elect one Class III directors are elect four Class III directors. ("Proposal 1");	ector
2. Ratification of Appointment of Independent Auditor. To ratify the appointment of Crowe Horwath LLP as independent auditors for Seacoast for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2014 ("Proposal 2");	
Advisory (Non-binding) Vote on Compensation of Named Executive Officers. To allow shareholders to endorse of 3. not endorse the compensation of the Company's named executive officers as disclosed in this Proxy Statement ("Proposal 3");	or
4. To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof.	
The Proxy Statement explains these proposals in greater detail. We urge you to read these materials carefully.	

Only shareholders of record and beneficial owners of the Company's Common Stock as of the close of business on March 20, 2014 are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting or any adjournments thereof. All

shareholders, whether or not they expect to attend the Annual Meeting in person, are requested to vote by internet or

telephone, or by requesting a paper proxy card and completing, signing and returning it by mail.

on

By Order of the Board of Directors

Dennis S. Hudson, III

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

April 9, 2014

#### YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT.

Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting, please take the time to vote by following the telephone or internet voting procedures described on the notice mailed to you, or by requesting a paper proxy card and returning it promptly. If you attend the meeting, you may vote in person if you wish, even if you have previously voted, by revoking your proxy vote at any time prior to its exercise.

# Table of Contents

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE PROXY SOLICITATION MATERIALS AND THE PROXY SOLICITATION	1
Proxy Materials	1
Why am I receiving these proxy materials?	1
What is included in the proxy materials?	1
What information is contained in this proxy statement?	1
Why did I receive a "Notice of the Internet Availability of Proxy Materials" but no proxy materials?	2
How can I access the proxy materials over the internet?	2
Will the Company use the Notice and Access method to furnish proxy materials to its shareholders in the future?	
What if I prefer to receive paper or email copies of the proxy materials?	2
Voting Information	3
What matters will be voted on at the Annual Meeting?	3
How do I vote (shareholder of record)?	3
What if my shares are held in street name?	3
How will my shares of stock held in Seacoast's Retirement Savings Plan or Employee Stock Purchase Plan be voted?	4
How will my shares of Common Stock held in Seacoast's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan be voted?	4
What does it mean if I receive more than one proxy card or Notice?	4
What if I change my mind after I have voted?	4
How many shares must be present to hold the Annual Meeting?	5 5
What if a quorum is not present at the Annual Meeting?	5
What is the recommendation of the Board of Directors with regard to each proposal?	5
What options do I have in voting on each proposal?	5
What are the voting requirements with regard to each proposal?	6
What is "householding" and how does it affect me?	6
Who will pay the expenses of proxy solicitation?	6
Where do I find the voting results of the Annual Meeting?	7
PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	8
General	8
Manner for Voting Proxies	9
Nominees to be Elected at the Annual Meeting	9
Directors Whose Terms Extend Beyond the Annual Meeting	14
Non-Director Executive Officers	19
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	20
Corporate Governance Framework	20
Board Independence	21
Board Leadership Structure	21
Director Nominating Process	22
Shareholder Communications	24
Corporate Governance Guidelines	24
Code of Conduct and Ethics	24
Board Meeting Attendance	24

Risk Oversight	24
Succession Planning & Management Development	25
Board Committees	26
Executive Officers	28
Management Stock Ownership	28
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS	29
Overview	29

Summary	30
Governance and Evolving Compensation Practices	30
Compensation Philosophy and Objectives	31
Determining Executive Compensation	32
Overview of Compensation Program for Executive Officers	33
Elements of the 2013 Compensation Program for Executive Officers	34
Risk Analysis of Executive Compensation	37
Clawback Policy	38
Hedging Policy	38
Stock Ownership Guidelines	38
Impact of Deduction Limit	39
Results of Shareholder Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation	39
2013 COMPENSATION	40
Executive Compensation	40
2013 Summary Compensation Table	40
2013 Components of All Other Compensation Table	41
2013 Grants of Plan-Based Awards	42
Employment and Change in Control Agreements	42
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End 2013	45
2013 Options Exercises and Stock Vested	46
2013 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation	47
Executive Deferred Compensation Plan	47
2013 Other Potential Post-Employment Payments	49
2013 Director Compensation	51
2013 Director Compensation Table	52
2013 Director Fees Earned or Paid in Cash	53
Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan	53
COMPENSATION & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE REPORT	54
CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS	55
Related Party Transactions	55
Certain Family Relationships	56
COMPENSATION & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE	- /
INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION	56
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN	
BENEFICIAL HOLDERS	57
Principal Shareholders	57
Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers	58
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	60
PROPOSAL 2: RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF	(1
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR	61
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT	62

ACCOUNTING FIRM	63
Change in Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	63
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees	63
Pre-Approval Policy	64
PROPOSAL 3: ADVISORY (NON-BINDING) VOTE ON	
COMPENSATION OF NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	65
(SAY-ON-PAY)	
SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2015	66
OTHER MATTERS	66
OTHER INFORMATION	66

PROXY STATEMENT FOR ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF SEACOAST BANKING CORPORATION OF FLORIDA MAY 21, 2014

The Board of Directors of Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida, a Florida corporation ("Seacoast" or the "Company") is soliciting proxies to be voted at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Wednesday, May 21, 2014, at 3:00 P.M. Local Time (collectively, with any adjournments or postponements, the "Annual Meeting") at the Wolf Technology Center, 2400 S.E. Salerno Road, Stuart, Florida for the purposes set forth in the attached Notice of Meeting. On or about April 9, 2014, the notice of meeting, this proxy statement, Seacoast's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period year ended December 31, 2013 ("Annual Report"), which includes our financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, and a proxy card or voting instruction card (collectively, the "proxy materials") are first being made available for review online and paper copies sent to each shareholder who has requested such materials.

#### QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE PROXY SOLICITATION MATERIALS

AND THE PROXY SOLICITATION

**Proxy Materials** 

Q: Why am I receiving these proxy materials?

A: Our Board of Directors has made these materials available to you on the internet or, at your request, has delivered printed proxy materials to you, because on March 20, 2014, the record date set for the Annual Meeting (the "Record Date"), you owned shares of Seacoast's common stock, \$0.10 par value ("Common Stock"). Only holders of record of our Common Stock at the close of business on the Record Date are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting. Each holder of Common Stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock owned as of the Record Date. As of the Record Date, there were 25,985,761 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding.

As a shareholder, you are invited to attend the Annual Meeting and are requested to vote on the proposals summarized below under "What matters will be voted on at the Annual Meeting" and described in greater detail elsewhere in this proxy statement. Seacoast's Board of Directors knows of no other business that will be presented for consideration at the Annual Meeting other than the matters described in this proxy statement.

# Q: What is included in the proxy materials?

A: The proxy materials include:

• The notice of meeting and our proxy statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting;

Our 2013 Annual Report, which includes our financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013; and

• A proxy card or a voting instruction card for the Annual Meeting.

# Q: What information is contained in this proxy statement?

A: This proxy statement describes the matters that will be presented for consideration by shareholders at the Annual Meeting, the voting process, the compensation of our directors and certain of our executive officers, corporate governance, and certain other required information. It also gives you background information concerning the proposals to assist you in making an informed decision. Please read it carefully.

## Q: Why did I receive a "Notice of the Internet Availability of Proxy Materials", but no proxy materials?

A: We have furnished our proxy materials to certain shareholders via the internet under the "Notice and Access" method permitted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). Therefore, unless you request hard copies, you will not receive printed copies of the proxy materials. Instead, the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (the "Notice"), which was mailed to most of our shareholders on or about April 9, 2014, instructs you as to how to access and review all of the proxy materials on the internet. The Notice also contains instructions on how to submit your proxy on the internet or by phone, or, if you prefer, to obtain a paper or email copy of the proxy materials.

This process provides a convenient and timely method for shareholders to obtain the proxy materials and vote, reduces the printing and mailing expenses paid by the Company, and reduces the environmental impact of producing the proxy materials.

#### Q: How can I access the proxy materials over the internet?

The Notice, proxy card or voting instruction card will contain instructions on how to:

- View our proxy materials for the Annual Meeting on the internet and vote your shares; and
  - Instruct us to send our future proxy materials to you electronically by email.

Our proxy materials are also available on our Investor Relations website at:

## https://www.snl.com/IRWebLinkX/GenPage.aspx?IID=100425&GKP=210302

Choosing to receive your future proxy materials by email will save us the cost of printing and mailing documents to you, and will conserve natural resources. If you choose to receive future proxy materials by email, you will receive an email next year with instructions containing a link to those materials and a link to the proxy voting site. Your election to receive proxy materials by email will remain in effect until you terminate it.

Q: Will the Company use the Notice and Access method to furnish proxy materials to its shareholders in the future?

A: The Company may choose to continue to use the Notice and Access method to furnish proxy materials to its shareholders in the future. By reducing the amount of materials that the Company is required to print and mail, this method provides an opportunity for cost savings as well as conservation of natural resources. The Company will evaluate the cost savings, as well as the possible impact on shareholder participation, as it considers how to furnish proxy materials to our shareholders in the future.

# Q: What if I prefer to receive paper or email copies of the materials?

A: If you prefer to receive paper or email copies of the materials, you can still do so. You may request a paper copy of the materials by (i) calling 1-800-579-1639; (ii) sending an e-mail to sendmaterial@proxyvote.com; or (iii) logging onto www.ProxyVote.com. There is no charge to receive the materials by mail or email. If requesting material by e-mail, please send a blank e-mail with the 12 digit control number (located on the Notice) in the subject line.

The Company must provide paper copies via first class mail to any shareholder who, after receiving the Notice, nevertheless requests paper copies. Even if you do not request paper copies now, you will still have the right to request delivery of a free set of proxy materials upon receipt of any notice in the future. Because first class postage is significantly more expensive than bulk mail rates and because each such request must be processed on an individual basis, the cost of responding to a single request for paper copies is likely to be significantly greater than the per shareholder cost the Company previously incurred in delivering proxy materials in bulk. Therefore, requests for paper copies could undermine or eliminate expected cost savings associated with our decision to use the Notice and Access method of furnishing proxy materials.

By developing a database of shareholders who would prefer to continue receiving paper copies of proxy materials, the Company will be able to use the full set delivery option for these shareholders, while using the Notice and Access option for other shareholders. We believe this will significantly reduce the number of requests for paper copies that the Company will need to process on an individual basis going forward and will position the Company to better capture cost savings should we continue to use the Notice and Access method in the future. We appreciate your assistance in helping us develop this database.

## **Voting Information**

# Q: What matters will be voted on at the Annual Meeting?

A: You are being asked to vote on three proposals summarized as follows:

Proposal 1. To re-elect four Class III directors, elect two Class II directors and elect one Class III director;

Proposal To ratify the appointment of Crowe Horwath LLP as independent auditors for Seacoast for the fiscal yearending December 31, 2014; and

Proposal To allow shareholders to endorse or not endorse, on a non-binding basis, the compensation of theCompany's named executive officers as disclosed in this Proxy Statement.

These matters are more fully described in this proxy statement.

#### Q: How do I vote (shareholder of record)?

A: You are a shareholder of record if your shares of Common Stock are held in your name on the Record Date. If you are a beneficial owner of Common Stock held by a broker, bank or other nominee (which is commonly referred to as "street name"), please see the instructions in the following question.

Instructions for voting are found on the Notice and proxy card. After reviewing these instructions, please submit your proxy via telephone or through the Internet, or by completing and returning a written proxy card. By submitting your

proxy, you authorize the individuals named in it to represent you and vote your shares at the Annual Meeting in accordance with your instructions. Your vote is important, and your shares can only be voted if you are present in person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting. To ensure your representation at the Annual Meeting, we recommend you vote by proxy even if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting. Please vote promptly using one of the proxy delivery or voting methods indicated on the Notice or proxy card. You can vote in person at the Annual Meeting even if you previously provided a proxy by revoking the proxy vote at any time prior to its exercise.

If you vote by proxy, but do not provide voting instructions, your shares represented by the proxy will be voted as recommended by our Board of Directors as indicated below under "What is the recommendation of the Board of Directors with regard to each proposal?" If any other matters are properly presented at the Annual Meeting for action, the persons named and acting as proxy will have the discretion to vote for you on these matters in accordance with their best judgment. We do not currently expect that any other matters will be properly presented for action at the Annual Meeting.

#### Q: What if my shares are held in street name?

A: If you are a beneficial owner and a broker, bank or other nominee is the record holder (which is commonly referred to as "street name"), then you received the Notice or proxy materials from the record holder. You have the right to direct your broker or nominee how to vote your shares, and such broker or other nominee is required to vote the shares in accordance with your instructions. Your broker or nominee should have given you instructions for you to provide direction on how to vote your shares. It will then be the record holder's responsibility to vote your shares for you in the manner you direct.

Under the rules of various securities exchanges, brokers and other record holders may generally vote on discretionary or routine matters, but cannot vote on non-routine or non-discretionary matters, such as the election of directors, unless they have received voting instructions from the person for whom they are holding shares. Proposals 1 and 3 are considered non-routine matters, and cannot be voted on by your broker without your instructions. We therefore encourage you to provide directions to your broker as to how you want your shares voted on all matters to be brought before the Annual Meeting. You should do this by carefully following the instructions your broker gives you.

If your shares are held in street name, you are invited to attend the Annual Meeting; however, you may not vote your shares of Common Stock held in street name in person at the Annual Meeting unless you request and obtain a power of attorney or other authority from your broker or other nominee who holds your shares and bring it to the Annual Meeting. Even if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, we ask that you vote in advance of the Annual Meeting in case your plans change.

# Q: How will my shares of stock held in Seacoast's Retirement Savings Plan or Employee Stock Purchase Plan be voted?

A: If you are a participant in Seacoast's Retirement Savings Plan or Employee Stock Purchase Plan, your voting instructions must be received by May 15, 2014 (the "cut-off date") to be counted. When your voting instructions are received by the cut-off date, your shares in these plans will be voted as directed by you. For the shares in your account in Seacoast's Retirement Savings Plan, if you do not submit your voting instructions by following the instructions on the Notice or proxy card, then the trustee of the Retirement Savings Plan will vote, or not vote, in its sole discretion, the shares of Common Stock in your account. For shares held in your account in the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, your shares will not be voted if you do not give voting instructions as to such shares by proxy.

# Q: How will my shares of Common Stock held in Seacoast's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan be voted?

A: If you are a participant in Seacoast's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, follow the instructions on the Notice or proxy card to provide voting instructions to the Trustee. Shares held in your plan account will be combined and voted at the Annual Meeting in the same manner in which you voted those shares registered in your own name either by proxy or in person.

#### Q: What does it mean if I receive more than one proxy card or Notice?

A: It means that you have multiple holdings reflected in our stock transfer records and/or in accounts with brokers or other nominees. For example, you may hold some of your shares individually, some jointly with your spouse and some in trust for your children. Please follow the instructions on each Notice or proxy card to ensure that all of your shares are voted.

## Q: What if I change my mind after I have voted?

A: If you hold your shares in your own name, you may revoke your proxy and change your vote at any time before the polls close at the Annual Meeting. You may do this by:

timely submitting another proxy via the telephone or internet;

delivering to Seacoast a written notice bearing a date later than the date of the proxy card, stating that you revoke the proxy, with such written notice to be sent to: 815 Colorado Avenue, P. O. Box 9012, Stuart, Florida 34995, Attention: Corporate Secretary;

• signing and delivering to Seacoast a proxy card relating to the same shares and bearing a later date; or

attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person by written ballot, although attendance at the Annual Meeting will not, by itself, revoke a proxy.

Also, please note that if you have voted through your broker, bank or other nominee and you wish to change your vote, you must follow the instructions received from such entity to change your vote.

#### Q: How many shares must be present to hold the Annual Meeting?

A: To hold a vote on any proposal, a quorum must be present in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting. A quorum is a majority of the total votes entitled to be cast by the holders of the outstanding shares of Common Stock as of the Record Date.

Shares are counted as present at the Annual Meeting if the shareholder either:

- · is present and votes in person at the Annual Meeting;
- has voted by proxy via the telephone or Internet; or
- has properly submitted a signed proxy card or other form of written proxy.

In determining whether a quorum exists at the Annual Meeting for purposes of all matters to be voted on, all votes "for" or "against," as well as all abstentions and broker non-votes, will be counted. A "broker non-vote" occurs when a nominee does not have discretionary voting power with respect to that proposal and has not received instructions from the beneficial owner.

On March 20, 2014, the record date, there were 25,985,761 shares of Common Stock issued, outstanding and entitled to be voted, which were held by approximately 1,560 holders of record. Therefore, at least 12,992,881 shares need to be present at the Annual Meeting or represented by proxy in order for a quorum to exist.

Directors and executive officers of the Company beneficially hold approximately 6,593,999 shares of Common Stock, or 25.3 percent of all the votes entitled to be cast at the Annual Meeting.

#### Q: What if a quorum is not present at the Annual Meeting?

A: If a quorum is not present at the scheduled time of the Annual Meeting, a majority of the shareholders present or represented by proxy may adjourn the Annual Meeting until a quorum is present. The time and place of the adjourned Annual Meeting will be announced at the time of the adjournment, if any, and no other notice will be given. An adjournment will have no effect on the business that may be conducted at the Annual Meeting. If the Annual Meeting is adjourned more than 120 days after the date fixed for the original Annual Meeting, the Board of Directors must fix a new Record Date to determine the shareholders entitled to vote at the adjourned Annual Meeting.

#### Q: What is the recommendation of the Board of Directors with regard to each proposal?

A: The Board of Directors of Seacoast believes the proposals described herein are in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders and, accordingly, unanimously recommends that shareholders vote as follows:

Proposal Management Recommendation

1 Election of Directors FOR ALL 2 Ratification of Auditor FOR 3 Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation FOR

#### Q: What options do I have in voting on each proposal?

A: Except with respect to Proposal 1 for the election of directors, you may vote "for," "against," or "abstain" on each proposal properly brought before the Annual Meeting. In the election of directors, you may vote "for" or "withhold authority" to vote for each nominee.

## Q: What are the voting requirements with regard to each proposal?

A: Under our Bylaws, all elections of directors are decided by plurality vote. However, notwithstanding the plurality standard, in an uncontested election for directors, which is the case for the election under Proposal 1, our Corporate Governance Guidelines provide that if any director nominee receives a greater number of votes "withheld" from his or her election than votes "for" such election, then the director will promptly tender his or her resignation to the Board following certification of the shareholder vote, with such resignation to be effective upon acceptance by the Board of Directors. The Compensation and Governance Committee would then review and make a recommendation to the Board of Directors as to whether the Board should accept the resignation, and the Board would ultimately decide whether to accept the resignation. The Company will disclose its decision-making process regarding the resignation in a Form 8-K furnished to the SEC. In contested elections, the required vote would be a plurality of votes cast and the resignation policy would not apply. Full details of this policy are set forth in our Corporate Governance Guidelines, available on our website at <a href="https://www.seacoastbanking.net">www.seacoastbanking.net</a>.

Proposals 2 and 3 require approval by the affirmative vote of a majority of votes cast at the Annual Meeting.

# Our Board of Directors unanimously recommends that you vote "FOR" Proposals 1, 2 and 3.

Unless otherwise required by the Company's Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended ("Articles of Incorporation"), our Bylaws, the Florida Business Corporation Act, or by applicable law, any other proposal that is properly brought before the Annual Meeting will require approval by the affirmative vote of a majority of all votes cast at the Annual Meeting.

Please remember that Proposals 1 and 3 are each considered non-routine matters. As a result, if your shares are held by a broker or other fiduciary, your shares cannot be voted on these matters unless you have provided voting instructions to your broker or other nominee.

Abstentions and broker non-votes, if any, will not be counted for purposes of determining whether any of the proposals have received sufficient votes for approval, but will count for purposes of determining whether or not a quorum is present. So long as a quorum is present, abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on any of the matters presented for a vote at the Annual Meeting.

#### Q: What is "householding" and how does it affect me?

A: The SEC permits delivery of one copy of the proxy materials to shareholders who have the same address and last name under a procedure referred to as "householding". We do not utilize householding for our shareholders of record. However, if you hold your shares through a broker, bank or other nominee, you may receive only one copy of the Notice and, as applicable, any additional proxy materials that are delivered.

If you receive a single set of proxy materials as a result of householding, and you would like to have separate copies of proxy materials mailed to you in the future, please contact your broker, bank or other nominee. However, if you want to receive a paper proxy or Notice or other proxy materials for purposes of this year's Annual Meeting, follow the instructions included in the Notice that was sent to you, or as indicated above under "What if I prefer to receive paper or email copies of the materials?"

#### O: Who will pay the expenses of the proxy solicitation?

A: The Company will bear the cost of preparing, printing and mailing the proxy materials and soliciting proxies for the Annual Meeting. In addition to the solicitation of shareholders of record by mail, telephone, electronic mail, facsimile or personal contact, Seacoast will be contacting brokers, dealers, banks, and/or voting trustees or their nominees who can be identified as record holders of Common Stock; such holders, after inquiry by Seacoast, will provide information concerning quantities of proxy materials needed to supply such information to beneficial owners, and Seacoast will reimburse them for the reasonable expense of mailing proxy materials. Seacoast may retain other unaffiliated third parties to solicit proxies and pay the reasonable expenses and charges of such third parties for their services.

0:	Where of	lo l	find	the	voting	results	of	the	Annual	Meeting	?
$\mathbf{z}$ .	111111111111111111111111111111111111111	$\iota \iota \iota$	Julu	·····	roung	ICSUUS	v,	uic .	liiiiuuu	MICCHILL	•

A: If available, we will announce voting results at the Annual Meeting. The voting results will also be disclosed on a Form 8-K that we will file with the SEC within four business days after the Annual Meeting.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Shareholder Meeting to be Held on May 21, 2014.

The Notice of Annual Meeting, the 2014 Proxy Statement and the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 are available at:

www.proxyvote.com

PROPOSAL 1
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
General
As of the date of this proxy statement, Seacoast's Board of Directors consists of fourteen members divided into three classes, serving staggered three year terms as provided in our Articles of Incorporation.
The Annual Meeting is being held to, among other things, re-elect four Class III directors of Seacoast, elect two Class II directors and elect one Class III director, each of whom has been nominated by the Compensation and Governance Committee of the Board of Directors. All of the nominees are presently directors of Seacoast and also serve as members of the Board of Directors of Seacoast's principal banking subsidiary, Seacoast National Bank (the "Bank"). The members of the Boards of Directors of the Bank and the Company are the same except for John H. Crane, who is currently a director of the Bank only. If re-elected, each Class III director nominee will serve a three year term expiring at the 2017 Annual Meeting and until their successors have been elected and qualified.
On September 17, 2013, the Board of Directors, following the recommendation of our Compensation and Governance Committee, elected Dennis J. Arczynski as a director, effective immediately, replacing John H. Crane who retired from the Company's Board in July 2013. Mr. Arczynski has been a director of the Bank since 2007. Mr. Crane remains on the Board of Directors of the Bank. Mr. Arczynski will stand for election as a Class II director at the Annual Meeting, and, if elected, Mr. Arczynski will serve for a term expiring at the 2016 Annual Meeting, along with the other Class II directors.

On October 15, 2013, the Board of Directors, following the recommendation of our Compensation and Governance Committee, increased the size of the Board from twelve to thirteen directors and appointed Julie H. Daum as a director to immediately fill the vacancy on the expanded Board. Ms. Daum will stand for election as a Class III director at the Annual Meeting, and, if elected, will serve for a term expiring at the 2017 Annual Meeting, along with the other Class III directors.

On February 24, 2014, the Board of Directors, following the recommendation of our Compensation and Governance Committee, increased the size of the Board from thirteen to fourteen directors and appointed Maryann B. Goebel as a director to immediately fill the vacancy on the expanded Board. Ms. Goebel will stand for election as a Class II director at the Annual Meeting, and, if elected, will serve for a term expiring at the 2016 Annual Meeting, along with the other Class II directors.

Currently, the Board of Directors is classified as follows:

Class	Term	Names of Directors
Class I	Term Expires at the 2015 Annual Meeting	H. Gilbert Culbreth, Jr. Christopher E. Fogal Robert B. Goldstein Dale M. Hudson
		Dennis J. Arczynski
Class II	Term Expires at the 2016 Annual Meeting	Maryann B. Goebel
		Roger O. Goldman Dennis S. Hudson, Jr. Thomas E. Rossin
		Stephen E. Bohner T. Michael Crook
Class III	Term Expires at the 2014 Annual Meeting	Julie H. Daum Dennis S. Hudson, III Edwin E. Walpole, III

#### **Manner for Voting Proxies**

All shares represented by valid proxies, and not revoked before they are exercised, will be voted in the manner specified therein. If a valid proxy is submitted but no vote is specified, the proxy will be voted **FOR** the election of each of the seven nominees for election as directors. Please note that banks and brokers that do not receive voting instructions from their clients are not able to vote their client's shares in the election of directors. Although all nominees are expected to serve if elected, if any nominee is unable to serve, then the persons designated as proxies will vote for the remaining nominees and for such replacements, if any, as may be nominated by Seacoast's Compensation and Governance Committee. Proxies cannot be voted for a greater number of persons than the number of nominees specified herein (seven persons). Cumulative voting is not permitted.

The affirmative vote of the holders of shares of Common Stock representing a plurality of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting at which a quorum is present is required for the election of the directors listed below. However, to provide shareholders with a meaningful role in uncontested director elections, which is the case for the election of the director nominees listed below, our Corporate Governance Guidelines provide that if any director nominee receives a greater number of votes "withheld" for his or her election than votes "for" such election, then the director will promptly tender his or her resignation to the Board following certification of the shareholder vote, with such resignation to be effective upon acceptance by the Board of Directors. The Compensation and Governance Committee would then review and make a recommendation to the Board of Directors as to whether the Board should accept the resignation, and the Board would ultimately decide whether to accept the resignation. The Company will disclose its decision-making process regarding the resignation in a Form 8-K furnished to the SEC. In contested elections, the required vote would be a plurality of votes cast and the resignation policy would not apply. Further details of this policy and the corresponding procedures are set forth in our Corporate Governance Guidelines, available on our website at www.seacoastbanking. net.

The seven nominees have been nominated by Seacoast's Compensation and Governance Committee, and the Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" the election of all seven nominees listed below.

Nominees to be Elected at the Annual Meeting

*Dennis J. Arczynski*, age 62, is the chairman of the Enterprise Risk Management Committee and has been a director of the Bank since 2007. He was appointed to the Seacoast Board of Directors in September 2013, replacing retired director John H. Crane.

Mr. Arczynski is a risk management, corporate governance, regulatory affairs and banking consultant since 2007. He previously served for 33 years in various managerial and examiner positions in the U. S. Office of the Comptroller of

the Currency's (the "OCC") headquarters in Washington, D.C. and in several other OCC districts until 2007. As a National Bank Examiner with the OCC, Mr. Arczynski was responsible for the supervision and examination of the largest and most complex mid-size banks, community banks and trust companies; provided guidance to banks in all facets of commercial banking and fiduciary operations including international activities; performed risk assessment and conducted BSA/AML reviews and examinations of internationally active banks; and developed formal enforcement actions and corrective action plans for struggling and deficient institutions.

Mr. Arczynski's other positions of responsibility with the OCC included Assistant Director for Trust Operations, Special Assistant to the Senior Deputy Comptroller (FFIEC Liaison), Associate Director for Financial Management (Financial and Systems Review) and Field Office Manager (Miami Field Office). His duties included the formation of national policies and programs, development of OCC supervisory initiatives, establishment of interagency relations, drafting regulations and writing OCC examiner handbooks.

In making the determination that Mr. Arczynski should be a nominee for director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications, as well as:

- · his knowledge of the most effective management practices of the largest and most complex mid-size banks;
- ·his expertise in all facets of commercial banking and fiduciary operations, including risk assessment and BSA/AML;
- his risk management, corporate governance, and regulatory background specific to the financial services industry; and
- his public service which provides the Board of Directors with an alternative perspective in the areas of government relations and regulatory matters that impact the Company.

*Stephen E. Bohner*, age 60, is a member of the Company's Compensation and Governance Committee and has been a director of Seacoast since 2003.

Mr. Bohner has been president and owner of Premier Realty Group, a real estate company located in Sewalls Point, Florida, specializing in the sale of luxury homes, since 1987. In addition to his 37 years of experience in real estate, Mr. Bohner is actively involved in several professional and community organizations, having served as president of the Greater Martin County Association of Realtors and The Pine School. He was awarded the Realtor Association's Distinguished Service Award in 2001, and has served on numerous professional standards' panels in arbitration hearings and chaired the Realtors Association's grievance committee. Mr. Bohner is a graduate of Vanderbilt University with dual degrees in Business and Economics.

In making the determination that Mr. Bohner should be a nominee for director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications and his qualification as an independent director, as well as:

his business leadership and expertise in real estate, which provides the Board of Directors with valuable insight related to local real estate markets in which the Bank's customers are located and helps the Board make critical judgments regarding the Bank's lending activities since such judgments rely upon the proper valuation of real estate;

- his business leadership and entrepreneurial and management skills developed over the past 37 years;
- · his stature in the local community garnered from his years of professional and community involvement; and

his experience with the Company.

*T. Michael Crook*, age 66, is a member of the Company's Audit Committee and the Enterprise Risk Management Committee, and has been a director of Seacoast since 2003.

Mr. Crook has been a principal with the public accounting firm of Proctor, Crook, Crowder & Fogal, P.A., located in Stuart, Florida, since 1976 and a CPA certified public accountant ("CPA") since 1975. He was a member of Barnett Bank's Martin County board of directors for 11 years from 1986 to 1997. Mr. Crook is also active in the community, currently serving as a member of the board of the Martin County Community Foundation, and previously serving as director and president of the Economic Council and Stuart Kiwanis Club, former director of the Arts Foundation of Martin County and Stuart/Martin County Chamber of Commerce, and past chairman of the Indian River Community College Accounting Advisory Committee.

Mr. Crook's professional affiliations include the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Management Advisory Services Division of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the local legislative contact for the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

In making the determination that Mr. Crook should be a nominee for director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications and his qualification as an independent director, as well as:

his business experience and sound business judgment;

his accounting expertise as a CPA for more than 38 years, and his ability to provide guidance to the Board of Directors regarding accounting and financial matters;

his stature in the local community, including through service on the boards of the community organizations discussed above; and

his experience with the Company.

*Julie H. Daum*, age 59, is a member of the Compensation and Governance Committee and was elected as a director of the Bank and Seacoast in October 2013.

Ms. Daum has been a senior director of Spencer Stuart, a privately-held global executive search firm, since 1993. As co-head of the North American Board and CEO Practice at Spencer Stuart, she has helped place over 1,000 directors on corporate boards, including the boards of Coach, Delta Air Lines, American Express, CVS Caremark, General

Motors and Amazon. Prior to her work at Spencer Stuart, Ms. Daum was the executive director of the corporate board resource at Catalyst, where she managed all board of directors' activities and worked with companies to identify qualified women for their boards.

A widely renowned expert on corporate governance topics, Ms. Daum was recognized by the National Association of Corporate Directors' ("NACD") as one of the top 100 most influential leaders in corporate governance in 2013. She also advises corporate boards on succession planning for themselves and their CEOs, as well as best practices and governance issues. Each year, Ms. Daum develops the Spencer Stuart Board Index, a publication detailing trends at national boardrooms. She also co-founded and developed a program for board members entitled "Fresh Insights and Best Practices for Directors" at the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania, where she earned her MBA.

In making the determination that Ms. Daum should be a nominee for director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications and her qualification as an independent director, as well as:

- her expertise in recruiting, human resources and corporate governance;
- · her associations in the Florida market and insights and perspectives on public, private and not-for-profit boards;
- · her stature in the corporate governance community garnered from her years of professional involvement; and
- · her ability to serve as a mentor and catalyst to bring more women into senior leadership positions with the Company.

*Maryann B. Goebel*, age 62, is a member of the Company's Audit Committee and Enterprise Risk Management Committee, and was elected as a director of the Bank and Seacoast in February 2014.

Ms. Goebel has been an independent IT management consultant since mid-2012. In July 2012, she retired from Fiserv, Inc. (NASDAQ: FISV) where she had served as executive vice president and chief information officer since June 2009. In this role, she was responsible for all internal Fiserv IT systems (infrastructure and applications), as well as IT infrastructure, operations, engineering and middleware services for Fiserv clients who chose to outsource the processing of their Fiserv applications.

In her 40+ year career, Ms. Goebel has shaped the strategic direction of information technology for major corporations around the world, serving in the critical role of chief information officer for: DHL Express from 2006 to 2009; General Motors North America from 2003 to 2006; General Motors Europe from 1999 to 2001; General Motors Truck Group from 1997 to 1999; Bell Atlantic NYNEX Mobile (now Verizon Mobile) from 1995 to 1997; and Frito-Lay from 2001 to 2002. She has also held senior IT leadership positions at Texas Instruments, Inc., Aérospatiale Helicopter Corporation, and the Southland Corporation, among others. Ms. Goebel received the "100 Leading Women in the North American Auto Industry" award in 2005. She has also been given an award for outstanding professional achievement from her alma mater, Worcester Polytechnic Institute, where she earned a Bachelor of Science degree in mathematics.

In making the determination that Ms. Goebel should be a nominee for director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications and her qualification as an independent director, as well as:

her knowledge of complex information technology environments and focus on innovation;

her expertise in strategizing and implementing best-practice processes, tools and structure that are essential to supporting a superior customer experience;

her extensive experience in aligning IT objectives with corporate priorities; and

her leadership and ability to help transform Seacoast into an organization that uses technology to deliver state-of-the-art customer services.

Dennis S. Hudson, III, age 58, serves as Chairman and has been a director of Seacoast since 1984.

Mr. Hudson was named Chairman of Seacoast in July 2005, and has served as Chief Executive Officer of the Company since June 1998. Mr. Hudson has also served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank since 1992. He served as President of Seacoast from June 1998 to July 2005, after serving in various positions with the Company and the Bank since 1978. Mr. Hudson also serves on the board of directors and the audit committee of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (ticker: CPK), a public gas and electric utilities company headquartered in Dover, Delaware, which merged with Florida Public Utilities Company ("FPU") in 2009. Prior to that time, he served as a member of the board of directors of FPU. He was also a member of the board of directors of the Miami Branch of the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta from 2005 through 2010.

Mr. Hudson is actively involved in the community, having served on the boards of the Martin County YMCA Foundation, Council on Aging, The Pine School, the Job Training Center, American Heart Association, Martin County United Way, the Historical Society of Martin County and as chairman of the board of the Economic Council of Martin County, on which he still serves. He has been recognized for his achievements with several awards including the Florida Senate Medallion of Excellence Award presented by Florida Senator Ken Pruitt in 2001. Mr. Hudson is a graduate of Florida State University with dual degrees in Finance and Accounting, and a Master's degree in Business Administration.

In making the determination that Mr. Hudson should be a nominee for director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications, as well as:

his significant experience in the financial services industry and the organization, including his service as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, which provides a unique understanding of our operations;

his knowledge and relationships with the institutional investor community, including the Company's past and present institutional investors;

his service on other public company boards, which provides insight regarding general public company operations, policies, internal controls and corporate governance, which is useful and applicable to Seacoast; and

his stature in the local community, including through service on the boards of the non-profit organizations discussed above.

*Edwin E. Walpole*, age 78, is a member of the Company's Compensation and Governance Committee and has been a director of Seacoast since 2006.

Mr. Walpole has been the president, owner and director of Walpole Inc., a trucking transportation company in Okeechobee, Florida which covers the Southeastern United States, since 1960. He served as chairman, president and chief executive officer of Big Lake Financial Corporation ("Big Lake") from 1985 until Big Lake was acquired by Seacoast in April 2006. Mr. Walpole is also the president of Seminole Land Company, Walpole Feed and Supply Company, Trading Post & Farmers Market, and Fort Drum Corporation, and vice president and director of Walpole Leasing Corporation. He is a member and past president of the Okeechobee Economic Council and of the Florida Trucking Association, a member of the American Trucking Association, and formerly served on the board of trustees of Murray State University where he earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Agriculture.

In making the determination that Mr. Walpole should be a nominee for director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications and his qualification as an independent director, as well as:

his business leadership, entrepreneurial and management skills, developed through his leadership of Big Lake for more than 20 years and as the president and owner of Walpole Inc. for more than 50 years;

· his stature in the local community, including through service in the leadership positions set forth above; and

his experience with the Company.

Directors Whose Terms Extend Beyond the Annual Meeting

*H. Gilbert Culbreth, Jr.*, age 68, is co-chairman of the Company's Compensation and Governance Committee, was a member of the Audit Committee in 2013 and has been a director of Seacoast since 2008.

Mr. Culbreth has been chief executive officer and owner of Gilbert Chevrolet Company, Inc., a car dealership located in Okeechobee, Florida, for over 40 years. He also owns and manages Gilbert Ford, another car dealership in Okeechobee, Florida. Mr. Culbreth was previously a member of Big Lake's Financial Corporation's ("Big Lake") board of directors for 10 years prior to the acquisition of Big Lake by Seacoast in April 2006, and has served on the Bank's board of directors since the acquisition. In addition, Mr. Culbreth is president of several other family businesses, including, Culbreth Realty, Inc. (a real estate brokerage company), Parrott Investments, Inc. (a holding company for two other businesses), Gilbert Cattle Co., LLC (a cattle operation), Gilbert Marine (a watercraft sales company) and Gilbert Aviation Inc. (an aircraft sales and service company).

Mr. Culbreth is a former director of the Florida Council on Economic Education, the Okeechobee County Board of Realtors, the Okeechobee Economic Council, and the United Way of Okeechobee and is a member of the Masonic Lodge.

In making the determination that Mr. Culbreth should remain a director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications and his qualification as an independent director, as well as:

his diversity of business experience for 40 years in the Okeechobee, Florida market, which is valuable in understanding the customer segments in this market;

· his entrepreneurial and management skills;

· his stature in and knowledge of the local community; and

· his experience with the Company.

*Christopher E. Fogal*, age 62, is chairman of the Company's Audit Committee, was a member of the Company's Compensation and Governance Committee in 2013 and has been a director of Seacoast since 1997.

Mr. Fogal is a certified public accountant and principal with the public accounting firm of Proctor, Crook, Crowder & Fogal, P.A. He was the managing partner of Fogal & Associates from 1979 until the firm merged with Proctor Crook in 2009. Mr. Fogal served on the board of directors of Port St. Lucie National Bank until it was acquired by Seacoast in 1996. He has also served as past chairman of the Treasure Coast Private Industry Council and past president of the St. Lucie County Chamber of Commerce, and is active in a number of professional organizations including the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

In making the determination that Mr. Fogal should remain a director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications and his qualification as an independent director, as well as:

his accounting expertise as a CPA, which provides the Board of Directors with guidance related to internal controls and financial and accounting matters;

his business, management and decision-making skills, including his experience as managing partner of an accounting firm for 30 years;

his stature in the local community; and

his experience with the Company.

**Roger O. Goldman**, age 69, has been the Board's Lead Independent Director since November 2012 and a director of Seacoast since February 2012. Mr. Goldman also serves as an ex-officio member of all committees.

Mr. Goldman has been a director of American Express Bank FSB, a federally chartered savings bank located in Salt Lake City, Utah ("AEBFSB") since 2005, and is chairman of their audit and risk committee. He also serves on their compliance committee and executive committee. Mr. Goldman is also President and managing partner of Berkshire Opportunity Fund, which he founded in 2008 to provide financing and mentoring for small businesses in the Northeast. From 2009 to 2010, Mr. Goldman served as temporary volunteer CEO for 1Berkshire to create a powerful economic development engine for the Berkshires by integrating the work of four primary economic development agencies and raising larger and more sustainable funding.

From 1997 to 2000, Mr. Goldman was president and chief executive officer of Global Sourcing Services, LLC, a start-up venture specializing in outsourced marketing services and account acquisition and customer retention programs, which he grew to a substantial size before it was sold.

<sup>1</sup> AEBFSB has entered into various consent orders with each of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency and the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau regarding certain compliance related matters that AEBFSB should resolve. AEBFSB also paid certain civil money penalties, established a segregated fund to provide remediation to certain customers and agreed to make certain enhancements to its compliance and vendor oversight programs.

Mr. Goldman's extensive banking experience also includes management positions at Citicorp from 1969 to 1983; service as president and chief executive officer of Redwood Bank, a community bank in San Francisco, California, from 1983 to 1986; executive vice president and senior operating officer of Coreast Savings Bank from 1989 to 1991; and executive vice president in charge of the community banking group of NatWest Bancorp (with \$31 billion in assets) from 1991 to 1996 where he was responsible for managing all consumer and small business activities. In addition, he previously served on the boards of several public and private corporations, including Minyanville (a new media company), Cyota (an Internet security company), and American Express Centurion Bank, where he also served as a member of the audit committee. He is Chairman Emeritus of the Lighthouse International, a charitable foundation for the visually impaired which is headquartered in New York, and is the former Chairman of the Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation. Mr. Goldman received his Bachelor's degree from New York University in Marketing and his Juris Doctorate from the Washington College of Law at American University. He is an emeritus member of the New Jersey bar and former member of the Washington D.C. bar.

In making the determination that Mr. Goldman should remain a director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications and his qualification as an independent director, as well as:

his diversity of leadership experience in the financial services industry, particularly with respect to his retail banking and consumer and small business lending background;

his marketing and risk management expertise;

his legal background and knowledge of corporate governance matters;

his knowledge of and associations in the Palm Beach County market; and

·his considerable insights and perspectives garnered from years of service on public, private and not-for-profit boards.

*Robert B. Goldstein*, age 73, is co-chairman of the Company's Compensation and Governance Committee, is a member of the Enterprise Risk Management Committee and has been a director of Seacoast since 2010.

Mr. Goldstein is a founding principal of CapGen Capital Advisors LLC ("CapGen LLC"), New York, New York, an investment program fund formed in 2007 that invests in banks and financial institutions. He is also a member of CapGen LLC's investment committee. As of March 20, 2014, an affiliate of CapGen LLC was the beneficial owner of 5,470,090 shares of the Company's common stock, representing 21.1 percent of outstanding shares.

Mr. Goldstein is also currently a director of FNB Corporation (since 2003), a member of their executive committee and chairman of their compensation committee; is a director of Hampton Roads Bankshares (since 2010) and a member of their compensation, governance/nominating, and risk oversight committees; and is lead director of Palmetto Bancshares, Inc. and a member of the board of its banking subsidiary, Palmetto Bank (since 2010) and member of their credit and governance/nominating committees. Mr. Goldstein is also chairman of the board of directors of THE BANKshares, Inc., a member of the audit, ALCO, compensation and executive committees of THE BANKshares, Inc., and a director of its banking subsidiary, BankFIRST, since 2007. Mr. Goldstein's other senior executive and director experience includes service as director and chairman of the executive committee of Great Lakes Bancorp from 2005 to 2006; chairman of the board and chief executive officer of Bay View Capital Corporation, a \$6 billion bank holding company, from 2001 to 2006; director of Cobalt Holdings, LLC (an accredited credit rating agency and asset management company) from 2003 to 2010, as well as numerous other executive and/or director positions with financial institutions over a career that has spanned 50 years. Mr. Goldstein is nationally recognized for his expert investing and operational experience in turning around and implementing growth strategies for banks under the most challenging circumstances.

Mr. Goldstein's appointment to the Board of Directors is pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement (the "Stock Purchase Agreement"), dated October 23, 2009, between Seacoast and CapGen Capital Group III LP ("CapGen LP"), an affiliate of CapGen LLC. CapGen LP purchased 6,000,000 shares of our Common Stock on December 17, 2009 for \$13.5 million pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement. Under the Stock Purchase Agreement, CapGen LP is entitled to appoint one director to our Board of Directors as long as CapGen LP or an affiliate retains ownership of the shares purchased under the agreement.

Although Mr. Goldstein's directorships on outside boards exceed the number specified in the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines, the Compensation and Governance Committee currently believes that the number of directorships is acceptable since Mr. Goldstein's full-time job is to represent and provide expertise to boards of the banks in which CapGen LLC and its affiliates invest, and his directorships on these boards were approved by the Federal Reserve.

In making the determination that Mr. Goldstein should remain a director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications and his qualification as an independent director, as well as:

his significant experience in the financial services industry;

his leadership and service on other public company boards, which provides insight regarding general public company operations, policies, internal controls and corporate governance, which is useful and applicable to Seacoast; and

his knowledge and perspective on the interests of the institutional investor community.

Dale M. Hudson, age 79, has been a director of Seacoast since 1983.

Mr. Hudson served as Vice Chairman of Seacoast from July 2005 until his retirement on December 31, 2010, having previously served as Chairman from June 1998 to July 2005. He served as Chief Executive Officer of Seacoast from 1992 to June 1998, as President of Seacoast from 1990 to June 1998, and as Chairman of the Board of the Bank from September 1992 to June 1998. He also served on the board of directors of the Florida Bankers Association for five years. In addition to his 55+ years in banking, Mr. Hudson is extremely active in the community and charitable organizations. He has served on the Martin Memorial Hospital Foundation and Community Boards, as well as on the boards of the American Cancer Society, Honorary Advisory Board of the Florida Oceanographic Society, Indian River Community College, Treasure Coast Blood Bank Advisory Board and The Pine School for 15 years, including two years as chairman.

Mr. Hudson has also devoted 19 years of service as chairman of Mary's Kitchen, a local soup kitchen for the homeless. He has received numerous awards and honorary titles, including the first Martin County Citizen of the Year Award by the March of Dimes in 1995 and the National Philanthropy Award with his wife in 2006.

In making the determination that Mr. Hudson should remain a director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications, as well as:

his significant experience in the financial services industry and the organization, including his prior service as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, which provides a unique understanding of our operations;

· his tenure as director that spans a full range of banking and economic cycles affecting the Company; and

his stature in the local community, including through the leadership positions with the community organizations and philanthropic work discussed above.

**Dennis S. Hudson, Jr.**, age 86, is a member of the Enterprise Risk Management Committee and has been a director of Seacoast since 1983.

Mr. Hudson retired in June 1998 after a 48-year career with the Company and Bank. He served as Chairman of the Board of Seacoast from 1990 to June 1998. Prior thereto, he served as Chief Executive Officer of Seacoast from 1983 until 1992, President of Seacoast from 1983 until 1990 and Chairman of the Bank from 1969 until 1992. Mr. Hudson also served on the board of the Miami Branch of the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta from 1983 to 1985. Active in the community and with charitable organizations, he has served as chairman of the American Red Cross of Martin County, president of the Stuart Rotary, and as a director of Hospice of Martin County.

In making the determination that Mr. Hudson should remain a director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications, as well as:

his significant experience in the financial services industry and the organization, including his prior service as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, which provides a unique understanding of our operations;

· his tenure as director that spans a full range of banking and economic cycles affecting the Company; and

his stature in the local community, including the leadership positions with the community organizations discussed above.

*Thomas E. Rossin*, age 80, is a member of the Enterprise Risk Management Committee, was a member of the Compensation and Governance Committee in 2013 and has been a director of Seacoast since 2004.

Mr. Rossin has been a practicing attorney in West Palm Beach, Florida, since 1993, currently serving as management chairman with the firm of St. John, Rossin, Podesta, Burr & Lemme, PLLC. He served as a Florida State Senator from 1994 to 2002, the last two years as minority leader, and was a candidate for Florida Lt. Governor in 2002. He founded Flagler National Bank in 1974, serving as president, chief executive officer and director and growing it to the largest independent bank in Palm Beach County with over \$1 billion in assets. Forming The Flagler Bank Corporation, the holding company for Flagler National Bank, in 1983 and serving as president, chief executive officer and director, he took it public in 1984 and facilitated the acquisition of three financial institutions, until both Flagler National Bank and the holding company were sold in 1993 to SunTrust Bank.

Prior thereto, Mr. Rossin was vice chairman and director of First Bancshares of Florida, Inc. after consolidating four banks under one charter, including First National Bank in Riviera Beach at which he served as president and chief executive officer. He has served as past president of the Community Bankers Association of Florida and Palm Beach County Bankers Association, and is a member of the Palm Beach County Bar Association, American Bar Association

and the Florida Bar Association. In March 2014, Mr. Rossin received the Exemplary Elected Official Award from the Forum Club of the Palm Beaches.

In making the determination that Mr. Rossin should remain a director of Seacoast, the Compensation and Governance Committee considered these qualifications and his qualification as an independent director, as well as:

his legal background and, in particular, his knowledge of legal issues related to financial institutions and underlying corporate governance matters;

his public service which, combined with his legal background, provides the Board of Directors with knowledge in the areas of government relations and regulatory matters that impact the Company;

his significant experience in the financial services industry; and

his experience with the Company.

Non-Director Executive Officers

Maria G. Frias, age 52, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer of Seacoast since April 2012. Ms. Frias served as the Bank's Senior Vice President and Chief Auditor from July 2003 to April 2012 and as Compliance Officer from April 1996 to April 2012. She held various positions in the Company's Internal Audit Department since October 1990. Ms. Frias holds a B.S. in Finance and a Master's degree in Business Administration from the City University of New York. She maintains a number of professional designations, including: Certification in Risk Management Assurance, Certified Risk Professional, Certified Internal Auditor, Certified Bank Auditor, Certified Financial Services Auditor, Certified Regulatory Compliance Manager and FINRA Series 7. Ms. Frias is actively involved with the South Florida Compliance Association, National Association of Chartered Bank Auditors and the Palm Beach Chapter of the Institute of Internal Auditors, where she has served on the Board of Governors since October 2000.

*William R. Hahl*, age 65, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Seacoast and the Bank since July 1990. Previously, he worked for Ernst and Young for 13 years, before leaving to start his own consulting firm. Mr. Hahl is a graduate of Kent State University, a CPA and member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Ohio Society of Certified Public Accountants.

David D. Houdeshell, age 53, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of Seacoast and the Bank since June 2010. Before joining the Company, Mr. Houdeshell served from April 2007 to May 2010 as executive vice president and credit administrative executive for The South Financial Group in Greenville, South Carolina, a \$12 billion commercial bank holding company. In this role, he had oversight and direction of credit administration, policy and procedure development, credit monitoring, loan review, credit processes and technology initiatives. From October 2005 to March 2007, Mr. Houdeshell was senior vice president and director of credit portfolio risk management at The South Financial Group. Prior thereto, he was chief credit officer of Bombardier Capital, a \$13 billion financial services entity of a global transportation manufacturer, for five years. Mr. Houdeshell holds a B.S. in Finance from Florida State University and a Master's degree in Business Administration from Stonier Graduate School of Banking, University of Delaware.

#### CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

#### **Corporate Governance Framework**

# **Board** Independence

· 10 of our 14 directors are independent.

- · Our CEO is the only member of management who serves as a director.
- · Directors regularly review Board performance; assess gaps in skills and experience; look for Board Composition new directors to provide a fresh prospective and ensure sufficient succession planning while maintaining continuity.
  - · We have three standing board committees—Audit; Compensation and Governance; and Enterprise Risk Management.

- **Board Committees** The Audit Committee and the Compensation and Governance Committee consist entirely of independent, non-management directors.
  - · Chairs of the committees shape the agenda and information presented to their committees.
  - · Our independent directors elect an independent lead director.

### **Independent Lead** Director

- · Our independent lead director chairs regularly scheduled executive sessions, without management present, at which directors can discuss management performance, succession planning, board information needs, board effectiveness or any other matter.
- · Our Board maintains the ultimate oversight responsibility for risk management. Through an integrated enterprise risk management process, key risks are reviewed and evaluated by the Enterprise Risk Management Committee ("ERMC") before they are reviewed by the Board.
- The ERMC oversees the integration of risk management at Seacoast, monitors the risk framework, and makes recommendations to the Board regarding the Company's risk appetite.
- The Audit Committee oversees the Company's financial risk management process.

### **Board Oversight of** Risk

- · The Compensation and Governance Committee oversees risks and exposures related to the Company's corporate governance, director succession planning, and compensation practices to ensure that they do not encourage imprudent or excessive risk-taking.
- The Compensation and Governance Committee assists the Board with its leadership assessment and succession planning with respect to the position of CEO.
- · Our Board directly oversees and advises management on development and execution of the Company's strategy.

#### **Accountability**

- · We have a plurality vote standard for the election of directors, with a director resignation policy for uncontested elections.
- · Each common share is entitled to one vote.

 $\cdot\,$  All shareholders are able to raise concerns to our Board, a board committee or non-management directors.

# Director Stock Ownership Succession Planning

- · A personal holding of five times their annual retainer is recommended for each director.
- · CEO and management succession planning is one of the Board's highest priorities. Our Board ensures that appropriate attention is given to identifying and developing talented leaders.
- · Our Board promotes open and frank discussions with senior management and shareholders.

# **Open Communication**

- · Our directors have access to all management and employees on a confidential basis.
- · Our Board and its committees are authorized to hire outside consultants at their discretion and at the Company's expense.

#### **Board Independence**

The Company's Common Stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market ("Nasdaq"). Nasdaq requires that a majority of the Company's directors be "independent," as defined by the Nasdaq's rules. Generally, a director does not qualify as an independent director if the director (or, in some cases, a member of the director's immediate family) has, or in the past three years had, certain relationships or affiliations with the Company, its external or internal auditors, or other companies that do business with the Company. The Board of Directors has determined that a majority of the Company's directors are independent directors under the Nasdaq rules. The Company's current independent directors are: Stephen E. Bohner, T. Michael Crook, H. Gilbert Culbreth, Jr., Julie H. Daum, Christopher E. Fogal, Maryann Goebel, Roger O. Goldman, Robert B. Goldstein, Thomas E. Rossin, and Edwin E. Walpole, III.

**Board Leadership Structure** 

#### Chairman and CEO Roles

The Chairman of the Board of Directors provides leadership to the Board of Directors and works with the Board of Directors to define its structure and activities in the fulfillment of its responsibilities. The Company believes that the members of the Board of Directors possess considerable experience and unique knowledge of the challenges and opportunities the Company faces, and therefore are in the best position to evaluate the needs of the Company and how to best organize the capabilities of the Company's directors and executives to meet those needs. As a result, the Company believes that the decision as to who should serve as Chairman and as Chief Executive Officer, and whether the offices should be combined or separate, is properly the responsibility of the Board of Directors, to be exercised from time to time in appropriate consideration of then-existing facts and circumstances.

The Company's current Chief Executive Officer, Dennis S. Hudson, III, also serves as the Chairman of the Board of Directors. He has held the post of Chief Executive Officer for the past 16 years, Chairman for the past nine years, President for the eight years prior to being named Chairman, and has also served as Chief Executive Officer of the Bank for the past 21 years. During this time, Mr. Hudson has led the Company through its growth from a local community bank to an institution with \$2.3 billion in assets and 34 full-service branches and five Accelerate business offices in 12 counties. In light of Mr. Hudson's significant leadership tenure with the organization, his breadth of knowledge of the Company and his relationship with the institutional investor community, as well as the efficiencies, accountability, unified leadership and cohesive corporate culture that this structure provides, the Board of Directors believes it is appropriate that he serve as both Chief Executive Officer and Chairman.

#### **Independent Lead Director**

To further strengthen our corporate governance environment, our independent directors select a lead director from the independent directors if the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by the same person or if the Chairman of the Board is not an independent director. The lead director: coordinates the activities of the independent directors; collaborates with and makes recommendations to the CEO in setting Board meeting agendas; serves as an ex-officio member of each committee of the Board if not otherwise a member of the committee; reviews responses to director shareholder communications with the Board and if requested by a major shareholder or the CEO, is available for consultation or direct communication; prepares the agenda for executive sessions of the independent directors and chairs those sessions; and is primarily responsible for communications between the independent directors and the CEO. A more complete description of the lead director's role is contained in our Corporate Governance Guidelines and available on the Company's website at www.seacoastbanking.net. Roger O. Goldman was selected as Lead Director in November 2012.

#### **Executive Sessions**

In order to give a significant voice to our non-management directors, our Corporate Governance Guidelines provide for executive sessions of our independent directors. Our independent directors have established a policy to meet separately from the other directors in regularly scheduled executive sessions at least twice annually, and at such other times as may be deemed appropriate by the Company's independent directors. As specified in the Corporate Governance Guidelines, our Lead Independent Director presides at all executive sessions of the independent directors and non-management directors, and sets the agenda for such executive sessions. Any independent director may call an executive session of independent directors at any time. The independent directors met twice in executive session in 2013. Interested parties, including the Company's shareholders, may communicate directly with non-management directors by sending written communications to Non-Management Directors, c/o Corporate Secretary, Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida, 815 Colorado Avenue, P. O. Box 9012, Stuart, Florida 34995.

#### Committee Structure & Other Matters

Oversight is also provided through the extensive work of the Board's committees – Audit; Compensation and Governance; and Enterprise Risk Management Committee – in key areas such as financial reporting, internal controls, compliance, corporate governance, succession planning, compensation programs and risk management. The Audit Committee and the Compensation and Governance Committee consist entirely of independent, non-management directors.

In addition, at the end of each year, the Board and each of its committees review a schedule of agenda topics to be considered in the coming year. Each Board and committee member may raise subjects that are not on the agenda at any meeting and suggest items for inclusion in future agendas.

The Company believes that the foregoing structure, policies, and practices, when combined with the Company's other governance policies and procedures, provide appropriate opportunities for oversight, discussion, and evaluation of decisions and direction from the Board of Directors.

#### **Director Nominating Process**

The Compensation and Governance Committee serves as the nominating committee of the Company. The Committee annually reviews and makes recommendations to the full Board of Directors regarding the composition and size of the Board of Directors and its committees, and if determined necessary, recommends potential candidates to the Board for

nomination for election to the Board. The goal is to ensure that the Board of Directors consists of a diverse group of members with the proper expertise, skills, attributes and personal and professional backgrounds who, individually and collectively, are appropriate to achieve the Company's strategic vision and business objectives, and best serve the Company's and shareholders' long-term interests.

As part of the assessment process, the Compensation and Governance Committee evaluates whether the addition of a director or directors with particular attributes, experience, or skill sets could enhance the Board's effectiveness. During the candidate search process, the Committee may consult with other directors and senior officers and may hire a search firm to assist it to identify, evaluate and conduct due diligence on potential director candidates. Once a candidate has been identified, the Committee confirms that the candidate meets the minimum qualifications for Director nominees, and gathers information about the candidate through interviews, questionnaires, background checks, or any other means that the Committee deems to be helpful in the evaluation process. Director candidates are interviewed by a Co-Chairman of the Compensation and Governance Committee and at least one other member of the committee. Each member of the committee participates in the review and discussion of director candidates. Where appropriate, directors who are not on the Committee are encouraged to meet with and evaluate the suitability of potential candidates. The Committee then evaluates the qualities and skills of each candidate, both on an individual basis and taking into account the overall composition and needs of the Board, and recommends nominees to the Board. The full Board formally nominates candidates for director to be included in the slate of directors presented for shareholder vote based upon the recommendations of the Compensation and Governance Committee following this process.

Given the evolving needs and challenges of the Company, the Compensation and Governance Committee believes that the Board of Directors as a whole should have diversity of experience, which may, at any one or more times, include differences with respect to personal, educational or professional experience, gender, ethnicity, national origin, geographic representation, community involvement and age. However, the Compensation and Governance Committee does not assign specific weights to any particular criteria. Its goal is to identify nominees that, considered as a group, will possess the talents and characteristics necessary for the Board of Directors to fulfill its responsibilities. In addition, each director must have the qualifications, if any, set forth in the Company's Bylaws, as well as the following qualifications:

the highest ethical character, an appropriate personal and professional reputation, and must share the values of the Company as reflected in its Code of Conduct;

the ability to exercise sound business judgment; and

substantial business or professional experience and be able to offer meaningful advice and guidance to the Company's management based on that experience.

The Compensation and Governance Committee also considers numerous other qualities, skills and characteristics when evaluating director nominees, such as:

an understanding of and experience in the financial services industry, as well as accounting, finance, legal, real estate, corporate governance and technology expertise;

leadership experience with public companies or other major organizations, as well as civic and community relationships; and

qualifications as an independent director.

Any Company shareholder entitled to vote generally on the election of directors may recommend a candidate for nomination as a director. A shareholder may recommend a director nominee by submitting the name and qualifications of the candidate the shareholder wishes to recommend to the Company's Compensation and Governance Committee, c/o Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida, 815 Colorado Avenue, P. O. Box 9012, Stuart, Florida 34995. To be considered, recommendations with respect to an election of directors to be held at an annual meeting must be received not less than 60 days nor more than 90 days prior to the anniversary of the Company's last annual meeting of shareholders (or, if the date of the annual meeting is changed by more than 20 days from such anniversary date, within 10 days after the date that the Company mails or otherwise gives notice of the date of the annual meeting to shareholders), and recommendations with respect to an election of directors to be held at a special meeting called for that purpose must be received by the 10th day following the date on which notice of the special meeting was first mailed to shareholders. Recommendations meeting these requirements will be brought to the attention of the Company's Compensation and Governance Committee. Candidates for director recommended by shareholders are afforded the same consideration as candidates for director identified by Company directors, executive officers or search firms, if any, employed by the Company. In 2013, there were no shareholder nominee recommendations received.

Since last year's annual meeting, three directors, Dennis J. Arczynski, Julie H. Daum and Maryann Goebel, were elected to the Company's Board of Directors. Dennis J. Arczynski has served as a director of the Bank since 2007, and was identified by the Compensation and Governance Committee as an appropriate candidate to replace retiring

Seacoast director John H. Crane.

In May 2013, the Board retained Spencer Stuart to conduct a director candidate search for two additional directors. In this capacity, Spencer Stuart conducted an extensive search for candidates with the experience, skills, and characteristics that the Compensation and Governance Committee had identified for potential candidates, and presented the most qualified candidates to the Committee for consideration. During this process, the Committee asked Julie H. Daum, who was leading Spencer Stuart's search on behalf of the Company, whether she would consider joining Seacoast's Board of Directors. Following the formal nomination process described above, Ms. Daum was appointed to the Board in October 2013.

Maryann Goebel was initially identified as a potential candidate for the Board by Spencer Stuart, and her appointment to the Board and nomination for election at the 2014 Annual Shareholders' Meeting was a result of the process outlined above.

#### **Shareholder Communications**

The Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines provide for a process by which shareholders may communicate with the Board, a Board committee or the non-management directors as a group, or other individual directors. Shareholders who wish to communicate with the Board of Directors, a Board committee, the Lead Director or any other directors or an individual director may do so by sending written communications addressed to the Board of Directors of Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida, a Board committee or such group of directors or individual director, c/o Corporate Secretary, Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida, 815 Colorado Avenue, P. O. Box, 9012, Stuart, Florida 34995. All communications will be compiled by the Company's Secretary and submitted to the Board of Directors, a committee of the Board of Directors or the appropriate group of directors or individual director, as appropriate, at the next regular meeting of the Board.

#### Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Board of Directors has adopted the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines that are available on the Company's website at *www.seacoastbanking.net*, or without charge, upon written request to Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida, c/o Corporate Secretary, 815 Colorado Avenue, P. O. Box 9012, Stuart, Florida 34995.

#### Code of Conduct and Ethics

The Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all directors, officers and employees and a Code of Ethics for Financial Professionals applicable to the Company's chief executive officer and its chief financial officer, both of which are available on the Company's website at *www.seacoastbanking.net*, or without charge, upon written request to Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida, c/o Corporate Secretary, 815 Colorado Avenue, P. O. Box 9012, Stuart, Florida 34995. The Company will post on its website any amendment to or waiver from a provision of its Code of Conduct or Code of Ethics for Financial Professionals.

#### **Board Meeting Attendance**

The Board of Directors held eight regular meetings, three special meetings, and one joint strategic planning meeting with the Bank's board of directors during 2013. All of the directors attended at least 75 percent of the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors and committees on which they served. Ten of the Company's 12 then-incumbent Directors attended the Company's 2013 annual shareholders' meeting. The Company encourages all of its directors to attend its shareholders' meetings and all meetings of the Board of Directors and committees on which the directors

S	er	V	e	

Risk Oversight

The Board of Directors maintains oversight responsibility for the management of the Company's risks. A fundamental part of risk management is not only anticipating and understanding the risks the Company faces and the steps management is taking to manage those risks, but also understanding what level of risk is appropriate for the Company. The Board believes that risk management is an integral part of the Company's annual strategic planning process which addresses, among other things, the risks and opportunities facing Seacoast. The types of risks that the Company faces include:

macro-economic risks, such as inflation, reductions in economic growth, or recession;

political or regulatory risks, such as restriction on access to markets;

event risks, such as natural disasters; and

business specific risks related to strategy, financial reporting, credit, asset/liability management, market, operational execution (corporate governance, legal and regulatory compliance), and reputation.

While the Board of Directors maintains the ultimate oversight responsibility for risk management, the Company has adopted an enterprise risk management initiative to assist the Board. This process involves the Board of Directors, management and other personnel in an integrated effort to identify, assess, prioritize and manage the risks that affect our ability to execute on our corporate strategy and fulfill our long-term business objectives. This holistic process includes the development of plans to balance and manage these risks or mitigate their effects. As part of this process, the Board and its committees have been assigned responsibility for risk management oversight of specific areas.

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee ("ERMC") assists the Board in overseeing the integration of risk management at the Company, monitoring the risk framework which enables the full Board to identify, consider, and oversee critical issues and opportunities. The Board adopts a risk appetite based on ERMC's comprehensive assessment of Seacoast's key risks, the interrelationships between these key risks, and their relative rewards. The ERMC may also propose strategic actions that determine the short, medium, and long term risk posture of Seacoast; and recommends to the Board risk-based decisions to achieve Seacoast's strategic, operational and financial objectives.

The Audit Committee is charged with overseeing the Company's financial risk management process each year, including ensuring that management has taken steps to monitor, control and report such risks and reviewing with management the most significant risks identified and management's plans for addressing and mitigating the potential effects of such risks.

The Compensation and Governance Committee oversees risks and exposures related to the Company's programs and policies for corporate governance and director succession planning. The Compensation and Governance Committee also has oversight responsibility related to executive compensation matters. In addition, the Compensation and Governance Committee assists the Board with its leadership assessment and succession planning with respect to the position of CEO, and monitors and advises on management's succession planning for other executive officers.

Succession Planning & Management Development

Our Board understands that a strong succession framework reduces risk to the organization and therefore ensures that appropriate attention is given to identifying and developing talented leaders. The Board maintains oversight responsibility for planning for succession with respect to the position of CEO and monitoring and advising on management's succession planning for other executive officers. The Board's goal is to have a long-term and continuing program for effective senior leadership development and succession. The Board also has short-term contingency plans in place for emergency and unexpected occurrences, such as the sudden departure, death, or disability of the CEO or other executive officers.

The Compensation and Governance Committee, working with the CEO, annually evaluates succession planning at the senior levels of management and reports the results of such evaluation to the Board, along with recommendations on management development and succession planning. The updated succession plan is reviewed and approved by the Board to ensure that competencies are in alignment with the strategic plan. The annual review of the CEO succession planning process includes a review of specific individuals identified as active CEO succession candidates, and each of those individuals is reviewed with respect to progress in his or her current job position and progress toward meeting his or her defined leadership development plan. The Company's CEO and senior management are similarly responsible for supporting "next generation" leadership development by: identifying core talent, skills and capabilities of future leaders within the Company; assessing the individuals against leadership capabilities; identifying talent and skill gaps and development needs; assisting with internal candidate development; and identifying significant external hire needs.

The Board and individual Board members may meet with, advise and assist CEO succession candidates and become familiar with other senior and future leaders in the Company. Directors are encouraged to become sufficiently familiar with the Company's executive officers to be able to provide perspective on the experience, capabilities and performance of potential CEO candidates. The Board urges senior management, as well as other members of management who have future leadership potential within the Company, to attend and present at Board meetings so that each can be given appropriate exposure to the Board. The Board may contact and meet with any employee of the Company at any time, and are encouraged to make site visits, to meet with management, and to attend Company, industry and other events.

#### **Board Committees**

The Company's Board of Directors has three standing permanent committees: the Audit Committee, the Compensation and Governance Committee, and the Enterprise Risk Management Committee. These committees serve the same functions for the Company and the Bank. The current composition of each Company committee is set forth in the below table.

D. A. M	Audit	<b>Compensation &amp;</b>	<b>Enterprise Risk</b>	
Director Name		Governance	Management	
Dennis J. Arczynski			$X^{(1)}$	
Stephen Bohner (2)		X		
T. Michael Crook (2)	X		X	
H. Gilbert Culbreth, Jr. (2)		$X^{(1)}$		
Julie H. Daum (2)		X		
Christopher E. Fogal (2)	$X^{(1)}$			
Maryann Goebel (2)	X		X	
Roger O. Goldman (2)(3)				
Robert B. Goldstein (2)		$X^{(1)}$	X	
Dale M. Hudson				
Dennis S. Hudson, Jr.			X	
Dennis S. Hudson, III				
Thomas E. Rossin (2)			X	
Edwin E. Walpole (2)		X		

- (1) Committee Chairman
- (2) Independent director
- (3) Independent Lead Director who serves as an ex-officio (non-voting) member of all committees.

#### **Audit Committee**

The Audit Committee is currently composed of Mr. Fogal (Chairman), Mr. Crook and Ms. Goebel, all of whom the Board of Directors has determined are independent directors under Nasdaq and SEC rules. The Board of Directors has also determined that Mr. Fogal is an "audit committee financial expert" as defined by the SEC. The Audit Committee has the responsibilities set forth in the Audit Committee charter, as adopted by the full Board of Directors, including reviewing Seacoast's and its subsidiaries' financial statements and internal accounting controls, and reviewing reports of regulatory authorities and determining that all audits and examinations required by law are performed. The Audit Committee charter is available on the Company's website at <a href="https://www.seacoastbanking.net">www.seacoastbanking.net</a> or upon written request to c/o

Corporate Secretary, Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida, 815 Colorado Avenue, P. O. Box 9012, Stuart, Florida 34995. The Audit Committee appoints the independent auditors, reviews their audit plan, and reviews with the independent auditors the results of the audit and management's response thereto. The Audit Committee also reviews the adequacy of the internal audit budget and personnel, the internal audit plan and schedule, and results of audits performed by the internal audit staff. The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the audit function and appraising the effectiveness of internal and external audit efforts. The Audit Committee also reviews the procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, and changes to the Company's Code of Conduct, and approves related party transactions. The Audit Committee periodically reports its findings to the Board of Directors. This committee held seven meetings in 2013. During one of the meetings, the Audit Committee met once in private session with our independent auditor, once in private session without members of management present, and once in private session with individual members of management.

#### Compensation and Governance Committee

In January 2013, the Salary and Benefits Committee and the Nominating and Governance Committee of the Company were combined to form the Compensation and Governance Committee. The two committees were combined as part of a comprehensive review of the Company's and the Bank's committee structure by the Company's Board of Directors intended to reduce redundancy, create greater efficiencies, and clarify roles and responsibilities while preserving corporate governance and Board oversight. The Compensation and Governance Committee is currently composed of Mr. Culbreth (Co-Chair), Mr. Goldstein (Co-Chair), Mr. Bohner, Ms. Daum and Mr. Walpole, all of whom the Board of Directors has determined are independent directors under Nasdaq and SEC rules. This committee has the authority set forth in its charter, and approved by the Board of Directors, including:

determining the compensation of the Company's and the Bank's key executive officers;

overseeing the preparation of a "compensation discussion and analysis" on executive compensation and an annual compensation committee report which is included herein under "Compensation Committee Report";

- · administering the provisions of the Company's incentive compensation plans and other employee benefits plans;
- · identifying qualified individuals to serve as members of the board of directors of the Company and/or the Bank;

recommending to the boards of directors of the Company and the Bank the director nominees for the next annual meeting of shareholders;

taking a leadership role in shaping corporate governance policies and practices, including recommending to the Board of Directors the corporate governance guidelines applicable to Seacoast and monitoring Seacoast's compliance with these policies and guidelines; and

making recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning management development and succession planning activities at the senior levels of management, including an appropriate successor in the event of the unexpected death, incapacity or resignation of the CEO.

The Compensation and Governance Committee has the resources and authority to discharge its responsibilities, including authority to retain and terminate any compensation consulting firms, director search firms, independent legal counsel and other compensation advisers used to assist in carrying out its responsibilities, including the sole authority to approve the fees and other retention terms for such consultants, lawyers, and advisers, with such fees to be borne by the Company. The committee may delegate to a subcommittee consisting of two or more members, to the extent permitted by applicable law, such of its duties and responsibilities as it deems appropriate and advisable. The

committee periodically reports its activities to the Board of Directors.

The responsibilities and duties of the Compensation and Governance Committee are more fully set out in the committee's charter, available on the Company's website at *www.seacoastbanking.net* or upon written request to c/o Corporate Secretary, Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida, 815 Colorado Avenue, P. O. Box 9012, Stuart, Florida 34995. In 2013, the Compensation and Governance Committee held nine meetings.

Enterprise Risk Management Committee

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee ("ERMC") is currently composed of Mr. Arczynski (Chair), Mr. Crook, Ms. Goebel, Mr. Goldstein, Mr. Hudson, Jr. and Mr. Rossin. This committee has the authority set forth in its charter, and approved by the Board of Directors, including:

monitoring the risk framework to assist the full Board of Directors in identifying, considering, and overseeing critical issues and opportunities;

evaluating strategic opportunities being considered by Seacoast from a risk perspective, highlighting key risk considerations embedded in such strategic opportunities for the full Board, and making recommendations on courses of action to the Board based on the ERMC's evaluation;

providing oversight of the risk management monitoring and reporting functions at Seacoast to help ensure these functions are independent of business line or risk-taking processes;

reviewing key management, systems, processes and decisions, and assessing the integrity and adequacy of the risk management function of Seacoast to help build risk assessment data into critical business systems, and reporting any significant issues to the Board;

making recommendations to the Board regarding the Company's risk appetite, limits and policies and reviewing the strategic plan to help ensure it aligns with the Board-approved risk appetite; and

recommending to the Board the capital policy consistent with the Company's risk appetite and reviewing the adequacy of Seacoast's capital and its allocation to each line of business.

The ERMC has the resources and authority to discharge its responsibilities, including direct and unrestricted access to Seacoast's management and non-management personnel and all corporate records. In exceptional circumstances, with the advice and consent of the full Board, the Committee is authorized to: i) engage independent legal, accounting, and other advisors as it deems necessary to carry out its duties, and ii) compel management to develop and/or implement any additional procedures in support of risk policies. The committee may delegate to a subcommittee consisting of two or more members, to the extent permitted by applicable law, such of its duties and responsibilities as it deems appropriate and advisable. The committee periodically reports its activities to the Board of Directors.

The responsibilities and duties of the Enterprise Risk Management Committee are more fully set out in the committee's charter, available on the Company's website at *www.seacoastbanking.net* or upon written request to c/o Corporate Secretary, Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida, 815 Colorado Avenue, P. O. Box 9012, Stuart, Florida 34995. In 2013, the ERMC held 12 meetings.

#### **Executive Officers**

Executive officers are appointed annually at the organizational meeting of the respective Boards of Directors of Seacoast and the Bank following the annual meeting of Company shareholders, to serve until the next annual meeting and until successors are chosen and qualified.

Management Stock Ownership

As of the Record Date, March 20, 2014, based on available information, all directors, director nominees and executive officers of Seacoast as a group (19 persons) beneficially owned approximately 6,593,999 outstanding shares of Common Stock, constituting 25.4 percent of the total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at that date. In addition, as of the Record Date, various subsidiaries of Seacoast, as fiduciaries, custodians, and agents, had sole or shared voting power over 121,410 outstanding shares, or less than 0.5 percent of the outstanding shares, of Seacoast Common Stock, including shares held as trustee or agent of various Seacoast employee benefit and stock purchase plans. See "Questions and Answers about the Proxy Solicitation Materials and the Proxy Solicitation" and "Security Ownership of Management and Certain Beneficial Holders."

#### **COMPENSATION DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS**

#### Overview

The Company's executive compensation programs were influenced by several factors in 2013. During 2013, the Florida economy showed steady improvement. The housing market rebounded with home sales and prices rising. Business activity picked up. Tourism, which has been growing for two years, remained strong. However, the national economic outlook remained uncertain during the year as a result of the impact of new federal health care law, continued high levels of unemployment and debate concerning the impacts of anticipated changes for both monetary and fiscal policy.

Seacoast achieved a number of significant milestones during 2013. Many of these milestones were important elements of our strategic plan which are expected to serve as a foundation for growth in the future. We grew our core operating earnings throughout the year. We ended the year with \$52.0 million in net income, including a reversal of our tax valuation allowance of \$40.4 million which significantly increased our tangible common equity. We successfully raised additional common equity to support future growth and redeemed all outstanding shares of our Series A Preferred Stock totaling \$50 million. We reduced our total expense structure, while also rolling out our innovative Accelerate commercial banking platform in three Florida cities, increasing our investment in new digital products and adding new business bankers in every market we serve. In addition, we continued to produce improvements in asset quality and growth in our customer base.

The Company was a participant in the U.S. Department of the Treasury under the Capital Purchase Program ("CPP") from December 2008 through March 2012. During this period, the Company was prohibited from offering certain bonuses or incentive compensation awards (other than certain long-term restricted stock awards), or paying severance benefits, to our five most highly compensated senior executive officers. During our participation in the CPP, the traditional components of our compensation program changed. Specifically, the relative portion of base salary to total direct compensation increased as a result of: i) the payment of additional salary in the form of stock, ii) the elimination of the annual cash incentive, iii) the exclusion of the use of stock options and stock appreciation rights, and iv) limits on the amount of restricted stock that could be granted.

After our participation in the CPP ended, the Compensation and Governance Committee, which we refer to in this section as the Committee, worked to develop a new executive compensation program that would support strong earnings performance and growth, reward our leadership team for delivering positive results, and build shareholder value without encouraging unnecessary risk-taking. The new program was partially implemented in 2013, with grants of stock options and performance-based restricted stock units. The remainder of the program, which includes annual incentive awards and short-term performance-based stock awards, is being implemented in 2014.

The following discussion and analysis describes the compensation of the Company's named executive officers during 2013, as well as our compensation objectives and policies, the material elements of our compensation program, and the material factors considered in setting executive compensation. Our named executive officers for 2013 are listed below:

- Dennis S. Hudson, III, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the Bank;
- · William R. Hahl, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and the Bank;
- David Houdeshell, Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of the Company and the Bank;
- · Maria G. Frias, Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer of the Company and the Bank; and

H. Russell Holland, III, former Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer of the Company and the Bank, who served until his resignation effective on July 19, 2013.

The compensation of the named executive officers is presented in the tables and related information and discussed under "Executive Compensation" following this section.
Summary
The following is a brief overview of the information provided in this section.
General
The objectives of our compensation program are to attract and retain talented executives, to align their interests with those of our shareholders, and to recognize their individual contributions to the achievement of the Company's and the Bank's performance objectives, while discouraging unnecessary or excessive risk.
·Our goal is to be competitive with our total direct compensation, using industry data to benchmark compensation.
·In 2013, compensation for our executives included:
- base salary;
- stock options;
- performance-vesting restricted stock units;
benefits that include the same group health and welfare benefit programs and tax-qualified retirement plans available -to all of our employees, in addition to a non-qualified deferred compensation plan and supplemental executive life and disability coverage; and
- limited executive perquisites.
Messrs. Hudson and Hahl (and before his resignation, Mr. Holland) each have an employment and/or change in control agreement that provides severance pay if the executive's employment is terminated in certain circumstances.

#### 2013 Compensation

In early 2013, the Committee decided not to increase the base salaries of CEO Dennis S. Hudson, III or CFO William R. Hahl. However, the Committee did approve base salary increases for Ms. Frias and Mr. Houdeshell.

The Committee did not to make any short-term cash incentive awards to any of the Company's executive officers in 2013 based on the Company's 2013 earnings projections. After careful consideration of various equity compensation alternatives, the Committee granted time-vesting stock options and performance-vesting restricted stock units in June 2013. The stock options vest in annual installments over a five year period, and the restricted stock units are variable, based on the achievement of goals relating to after tax earnings and classified assets over a period of two and one-half years (through 2015), and vest in annual installments over a period of five years after the end of the performance period. The Committee decided not to grant any short-term equity incentive awards in 2013.

#### **Governance and Evolving Compensation Practices**

The Committee and Company management are mindful of evolving practices in executive compensation and corporate governance. In response, we have adopted certain policies and practices that are in keeping with "best practices" in many areas. For example:

We do not provide excessive executive perquisites or extraordinary relocation benefits to our named executive officers.

Our 2013 Incentive Plan has "double-trigger" vesting for equity awards in the context of a change in control if the awards are assumed by the acquiring company.

Our 2013 Incentive Plan expressly prohibits repricing of options (directly or indirectly) without prior shareholder approval.

The Committee engages an independent compensation consultant.

Company policy prohibits directors and executive officers from engaging in hedging activities involving Company stock.

Company policy requires the recovery of certain incentive-based compensation paid to current or former executive officers in the event of an accounting restatement.

#### **Compensation Philosophy and Objectives**

The concentration of wealth on the southeast coast of Florida makes the area in which the Company operates one of the most attractive regions in Florida for banks to operate and therefore a highly competitive employment market. The Company competes for talent with large national and regional bank franchises who seek local executive and production personnel, and with small local bank franchises who seek executive level talent.

In order to operate in this highly competitive market, the Company has implemented a complex business model that requires bankers who can leverage the best strategies of both large and small banking institutions. Specifically, the Company's size allows it to compete for larger commercial relationships, supported by a complete product offering which includes trust, investment services, private banking and specialty financing, in addition to more common consumer and business banking services. However, to compete with smaller community banks in its markets, the Company also maintains a relationship banking focus on both consumer and commercial business customer needs. We believe this dual strategy requires an organizational culture driven by the value systems of its employees—where disciplines such as taking high levels of personal responsibility, creating effective relationships and providing superior customer service, ultimately drive profitability.

The Company strives to satisfy the demands of its business model by rewarding executive officers both for the successful implementation of Company corporate objectives and for individual performance. The Company considers a full range of compensation elements in order to compare favorably with its peers as it seeks to attract and retain key personnel.

In designing the compensation program for executive officers, the Committee seeks to achieve the following key objectives:

Attract and Retain Talented Executives. The compensation program should provide each executive officer with a ·total compensation opportunity that is market competitive. This objective is intended to ensure that there are highly competent leaders in the organization, while maintaining an appropriate cost structure for the Company.

*Alignment with Shareholders*. The compensation program should align executives' interests with those of the Company's shareholders, promoting actions that will have a long-term positive impact on total shareholder returns.

Recognize Individual Contributions. The compensation program should reward executive officers for individual contributions to the success of the Company's operating performance. The Committee believes that over time the achievement of the Company's performance objectives is the primary determinant of share price.

Discourage Taking Excessive Risk. The compensation program should limit any features that could lead to the senior executive officers taking unnecessary or excessive risks that could threaten the value of the Company.

In the second half of 2012, when the Company was no longer restricted by its participation in the CPP, the Committee decided to develop a new incentive program for those individuals who are in positions to meaningfully impact the Company's bottom line goals. In August 2012, the Committee engaged Grant Thornton, a nationally known independent consulting firm, to conduct a review of compensation of the Company's executive officers, which is described under "Role of the Compensation Consultant" below. The information obtained from the study was used by the Committee to develop the incentive compensation program for executive officers for 2013.

#### **Determining Executive Compensation**

#### Role of the Committee

The Committee is responsible for establishing our compensation philosophy and for overseeing our executive compensation policies and programs generally. As part of this responsibility, the Committee:

- approves our executive compensation programs, including grants of equity awards;
- · evaluates the performance of the CEO and determines the CEO's compensation; and

reviews the performance of other members of executive management and approves their compensation based on recommendations made by the CEO.

The Committee reviews executive officer compensation to ensure that such compensation is consistent with our compensation philosophies, Company and personal performance, changes in market practices and changes in individual responsibilities.

#### Role of the Compensation Consultant

From time to time, the Committee has engaged independent compensation consultants and advisors. In general, these consultants and advisors have provided compensation benchmarking and analytical data and have rendered advice to the Committee regarding all aspects of the Committee's compensation decisions. The Committee has direct access to consultants and control over their engagement.

In August 2012, the Committee engaged Grant Thornton to conduct a review of the compensation of the Company's executive officers in comparison to a peer group of banks which was selected by Grant Thornton and approved by the Committee. Grant Thornton was also engaged to provide assistance with development of a short-term incentive compensation plan and a long-term equity-based incentive plan for executive officers and key managers, and to conduct a review of compensation paid to directors. In 2012, the firm was paid a total of \$85,245 for such services with the Committee and did not provide any services directly to the Company or to management. Grant Thornton's work on the design and implementation of the new compensation plan continued in 2013. In 2013, the firm was paid a total of \$20,790 for such services with the Committee and did not provide any services directly to the Company or to management.

In August 2012, and again in March 2014, the Committee evaluated the independence of Grant Thornton in light of SEC rules and Nasdaq listing standards, which require consideration of the following factors:

- whether any other services are provided to the Company by the consultant;
- the fees paid by the Company as a percentage of the consulting firm's total revenue;
- the policies or procedures maintained by the consulting firm that are designed to prevent a conflict of interest;

any business or personal relationships between the individual consultants involved in the engagement and a member of the Committee;

any company stock owned by the individual consultants involved in the engagement; and

any business or personal relationships between our executive officers and the consulting firm or the individual consultants involved in the engagement.

The Committee discussed these considerations and concluded that the engagement of Grant Thornton and the services provided to the Committee by Grant Thornton did not raise any conflict of interest.

## Benchmarking and Comparator Group

Grant Thornton's 2012 review of executive compensation included a comparison of salary, bonus and other forms of compensation, including stock based compensation, for a peer group of 20 publicly held regional banks that were identified by Grant Thornton as being comparable to the Company in size and geography. The asset size of the peer group ranged between \$1.5 billion and \$2.9 billion, with an average asset size of \$2.4 billion, based on data from the most recent fiscal quarter-end available at the time of the study. While the peer group was primarily based on asset size and geography, Grant Thornton also considered the peer bank's business model, financial performance and future company focus. Given the dramatic changes in the banking landscape in the last few years and the limited number of banks of Seacoast's size remaining in Florida, the study included two Florida-headquartered banks and other banks in the Southeastern U.S. The peer group also contained a combination of banks that had participated in the CPP and those not limited by CPP restrictions, as well as banks located in similar but less stressed markets. The peer group was comprised of:

- Ameris Bancorp (ABCB)
- BNC Bancorp (BNCN)
- Capital City Bank Group, Inc. (CCBG)
- Cardinal Financial Corporation (CFNL)
- CenterState Banks, Inc. (CSFL)
- City Holding Company (CHCO)
- Eagle Bancorp Inc. (EGBN)
- Fidelity Southern Corporation (LION)
- FNB United Corp (FNBN)

- Hampton Roads Bankshares, Inc. (HMPR)
- Metro Bancorp, Inc. (METR)
- Newbridge Bancorp (NBBC)
- Southeastern Bank Financial Corp. (SBFC.OB)
- Southern Community Financial Corp (SCMF)
- State Bank Financial Corp. (STBZ)
- Stellarone Corp. (STEL)
- Sterling Bancorp (STL)
- First Community Bancshares, Inc. (FCBC) Univest Corporation of Pennsylvania (UVSP)
  - Virginia Community Bancorp Inc. (VCBI)

The previous peer group used by the Company was selected by Grant Thornton in 2009 during a similar review of the Company's executive compensation. The peer group above includes many of the same financial institutions used in the

2009 study. Seven financial institutions that either had been closed by the FDIC, had become less than well-capitalized, were located outside the Southeastern U.S., or had become less comparable due to a change in asset size, business model or type of charter were eliminated from the list. Ten banks were added to replace those eliminated and round out the peer group to a total of 20 banks.

Grant Thornton concluded that between 2009 and the 2012 study, total compensation for the Company's executive officers had declined in comparison to the market. To improve the competitiveness of the Company's executive compensation package, Grant Thornton recommended the development of a long-term incentive plan designed to provide an opportunity for executives to earn equity compensation over a multi-year performance period based on achievement of specific performance targets.

#### **Overview of Compensation Program for Executive Officers**

The Company's executive compensation program historically included short-term incentive compensation through an annual cash incentive plan and long-term equity compensation in the form of restricted stock, stock options and/or stock-settled stock appreciation rights. However, the Company did not offer these elements of compensation to executive officers in 2008, 2009 or 2010 due to the Company's performance and its participation in the CPP. In 2011, when our performance improved, short and long-term incentive compensation was again provided through compensation forms which were permitted for participants in the CPP. After the compensation restrictions under the CPP ended in the first half of 2012, the Committee formulated a new incentive compensation program for executive officers which was partially implemented in 2013.

The new executive compensation program consists of the following elements: 1) base salary, 2) annual cash incentive award, 3) and equity compensation, in three forms, referred to as portfolio stock awards, incentive stock awards and stock options. Each element of the executive compensation program addresses different objectives. Those elements implemented in 2013 are described more fully below under "Elements of the 2013 Compensation Program for Executive Officers". Base salary represents the fixed portion of each executive's compensation and is generally targeted at or around the 50th percentile of comparable positions. The annual cash incentive award is another form of cash compensation that is earned based on achieving specific measurable objectives which, when met, result in acceptable overall operating results for the Company. The stock compensation is provided to align the executive's compensation with growth in shareholder value. Each component of the stock compensation has a different time horizon and performance measure(s) designed to align with specific short-term and long-term goals which support our long-term strategic direction, as reflected below:

## **Stock Compensation**

	Time Horizon	Performance Goals	Performance Measures
Component			
		· Profitability & Growth	· Net Income Growth
Portfolio Stock Grants	3 Years	· Shareholder Value Creation	Relative Total Shareholder Returns
		· Profitability & Growth	· Unit Profitability
Incentive Stock Grants	1 Year	· Shareholder Value Creation	· Other Financial Measures
			· Board Evaluation of milestone goals
		· Strategic Milestones	achieved
Stock Options	5-10 Years	· Shareholder Value Creation	· Stock Price

The new executive compensation program was partially implemented in 2013, with grants of portfolio stock awards (in the form of performance-vesting restricted stock units) and stock options. The Committee expects to implement the remainder of the program, which includes annual cash incentive awards and short-term incentive stock awards, in 2014.

## **Elements of the 2013 Compensation Program for Executive Officers**

As described in mor	e detail below	the elements of	of the Company	z's 2013 executiv	e compensation	program included:
115 465611064 111 11101	c actuir octow.	, the cicilicitis of	i uic Compan	y b 2013 checuny	c compensation	program included.

base salary;

· stock options;

· performance-vesting restricted stock units, which we refer to as "portfolio stock awards";

benefits that include the same group health and welfare benefit programs and tax-qualified retirement plans available ·to all of our employees, in addition to a non-qualified deferred compensation plan and supplemental executive life and disability coverage; and

limited executive perquisites.

## Setting 2013 Total Direct Compensation Opportunities

When setting base salary and target amounts for equity awards, the Committee examined each component of pay on both a stand-alone basis and as a total, as well as over a three-year period assuming target level performance is achieved in all periods and full implementation of all short-term and long-term compensation components described above. Pay decisions were based on the Committee's business judgment, informed by the comparative data, professional advice and other considerations, including the individual executive's position, experience and performance, internal pay equity and mastery of position responsibilities.

The table below reflects the targeted percentage of each element of direct compensation for the named executive officers in 2013, excluding indirect forms of compensation such as health, retirement and welfare benefits and perquisites.

## 2013 Target Compensation Elements as Percentage of Total Compensation

			<b>Performance-Vesting</b>
	Base Salary	Stock Options	RSUs
		Target Value (1)	
			Target Value (2)
Dennis S. Hudson, III	49%	6%	45%
William R. Hahl	55%	3%	42%
Maria G. Frias	61%	2%	37%
David Houdeshell	55%	3%	42%
H. Russell Holland, III			_

Grant date value, determined using a Black-Scholes analysis. This grant date value is reflected in the Summary (1) Compensation Table and the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table. The number of options granted is shown in the All Other Option Awards column of the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table.

Grant date value, assuming achievement of target performance goals. This grant date value is reflected in the Summary Compensation Table and the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table. The number of RSUs vesting at threshold, target and maximum performance is shown in the Equity Incentive Plan Awards column of the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table.

## Base Salary

The base salary for each of our executive officers represents the fixed portion of their total compensation. In establishing executive officer base salaries, the Committee has historically considered individual annual performance and contribution to the Company's overall profitability, as well as the relationship of an executive's total compensation compared to similar executives in other banks. Information regarding salaries paid in the market is obtained annually through publicly available salary surveys and proxy statement data, and is used to evaluate the Company's competitiveness in the employment market with its peers and competitors. Independent consultants selected by the Committee may also be used periodically to assess the competitiveness of the Company's salaries. For additional information regarding the determination of the Company's peer group, see "Determining Executive Compensation – Benchmarking and Comparator Group."

The Company's general philosophy is to provide base pay competitive with the market, and to reward individual performance while positioning salaries consistent with Company performance. Given our highly competitive employment market in South Florida and the Company's business strategy, the base salary level for key executives generally is targeted at or around the 50th percentile of comparable positions.

Changes in the base salaries paid to executive officers, including the named executive officers, are recommended by the chief executive officer based on annual performance assessments and are reviewed and approved by the Committee. Performance assessments for base salary adjustments in 2013 were subjective, non-formulaic and were not based upon objective financial criteria. The Committee considers and approves any change in the base salary paid to the chief executive officer after meeting in executive session.

The Committee met in March 2013 and decided not to increase the base salaries of the CEO and the Company's executive officers for 2013, except for Ms. Frias and Mr. Houdeshell, who received increases.

## **Stock Options**

The Company granted stock options to the executive officers on June 28, 2013. The options vest in annual installments over a five-year period and have a term of ten years. Because stock options provide compensation opportunity upside based solely on the growth in the Company's share price, the objective of the options is to directly align the Company's executive compensation program with the achievement of superior long-term shareholder returns.

## Portfolio Stock Awards (Performance-Vesting RSUs)

The Company also granted performance-vesting restricted stock units (RSUs) on June 28, 2013. We sometimes refer to these awards as the "portfolio stock awards." These awards have a measurement period of  $2\frac{1}{2}$  years (through December 31, 2015), with goals relating to after tax earnings (weighted at 75%) and classified assets (weighted at 25%). Payouts range from 87.5% of the target amount at threshold performance to 151% of the target amount at maximum performance. Achievement of the threshold goal for both measures is required for any of the awards to become eligible to vest. The number of shares that become eligible to vest are based on these performance factors and will then vest in equal annual installments over a three-year period following the performance period. These awards are designed to focus the executives on the Company's earnings and asset quality while investing in long-term growth initiatives and provide retention value during the vesting period.

## Retirement and Employee Welfare Benefits

The Company sponsors a retirement savings plan for employees of the Company and its affiliates (the "Retirement Savings Plan") and a nonqualified deferred compensation plan for certain executive officers (the "Executive Deferred Compensation Plan"). We offer these plans, and make contributions to them, to provide employees with tax-advantaged savings vehicles and to encourage them to save money for their retirement.

The Retirement Savings Plan is a tax-qualified defined contribution plan. All employees who satisfy service eligibility requirements may participate in the plan. The Retirement Savings Plan has various features, including:

an employer matching contribution for salary deferrals,

an annual retirement contribution, and

a profit sharing contribution.

In addition, the Retirement Savings Plan has a feature under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") that allows employees to make voluntary "salary savings contributions" ranging from one percent to 75 percent of compensation (as defined by the Retirement Savings Plan), subject to federal income tax limitations. After-tax contributions may also be made by employees through "voluntary contributions" (as defined in the Retirement Savings Plan for each plan year) subject to certain statutory limitations. A retirement contribution is made on an annual discretionary basis by the Company of up to two percent of "retirement eligible compensation," as defined in the Retirement Savings Plan. The Company contributions to the Retirement Savings Plan vest at the rate of 25 percent for each year the participant has worked at least 1,000 hours, with full vesting after four years of service. A participant becomes 100 percent vested in the event of death, disability or retirement on or after age 55.

The Company match on salary savings contributions was \$0.50 for each dollar contributed up to 4% of the employee's annual compensation in 2013. The retirement contribution in 2013 was 2% of annual compensation. The Company's Board of Directors decided not to make a profit sharing contribution for 2013.

The Executive Deferred Compensation Plan is described under "Executive Compensation-Nonqualified Deferred Compensation."

In addition to our retirement programs, the Company provides employees with welfare benefits, including hospitalization, major medical, disability and group life insurance plans and paid vacation. We also maintain a Section 125 cafeteria plan that allows our employees to set aside pre-tax dollars to pay for certain benefits. All of the full-time employees of the Company and the Bank, including the named executive officers, are eligible to participate in the Retirement Savings Plan and our welfare plans, subject to the terms of those plans.

The Bank provides supplemental disability insurance to certain members of executive management, including the named executive officers, in excess of the maximum benefit of \$10,000 per month provided under the group plan for all employees. The supplemental insurance provides a benefit up to 70% of the executive's monthly pre-disability income based on the executive's base salary and annual incentive compensation. Coverage can be converted and maintained by the individual participant after employment ends. The benefit may be reduced by income from other sources, and a partial benefit is paid if a disabled participant is able to work on a part-time basis. In 2013, the Company paid a total of \$10,604 for supplemental disability insurance for the named executive officers.

The retirement and employee welfare benefits paid by the Company for the named executive officers that are required to be disclosed in this proxy statement are included below in the "Summary Compensation Table," the "Components of All Other Compensation," and the "Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Table," and are described in the footnotes thereto.

## **Executive Perquisites**

We do not consider perquisites to be a significant element of our compensation program. However, we believe they are important and effective for attracting and retaining executive talent. We do not provide tax reimbursements, or "gross-ups," on perquisites. For 2013, perquisites were limited to a car allowance for Mr. Holland, and personal use of Company-provided cell phones for Ms. Frias and Mr. Houdeshell. For additional details regarding the executive perquisites, see below the "Summary Compensation Table" and the "Components of All Other Compensation."

## **Risk Analysis of Executive Compensation**

In 2013, the Committee and our head of human resources conducted a risk assessment of our compensation plans and programs to determine whether incentive compensation programs are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company. This risk assessment consisted of a review of cash and equity compensation provided to our employees, with a focus on incentive compensation plans which provide variable compensation to employees based upon performance of the Company, one of its subsidiaries or business units, or the individual employee. The incentive plans are designed to provide a strong link between performance and pay.

In light of the review, the Company concluded that the compensation programs are designed with the appropriate balance of risk and reward in relation to our overall business strategy and do not create risk that is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on us. The Company also concluded that risks can be effectively monitored and managed. The Committee will continue to consider compensation risk implications when making decisions regarding our compensation programs.

## **Clawback Policy**

In 2013, we adopted a Compensation Recoupment Policy to recover, to the extent practicable and appropriate, incentive compensation from any executive officer when:

the incentive compensation payment or award (or the vesting of such award) was based upon the achievement of financial results that were subsequently the subject of a restatement, regardless of whether the executive engaged in misconduct or otherwise contributed to the requirement for the restatement; and

·a lower payment or award would have been made to the executive officer based upon the restated financial results.

The policy is available on our website at <a href="www.seacoastbanking.net">www.seacoastbanking.net</a>. The policy, as written, anticipates the final rules implementing the clawback provision of the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, but will be amended, if necessary, when final regulations are issued by the SEC.

## **Hedging Policy**

In March, 2014, the Company adopted a new hedging policy. The policy prohibits our employees, including our executive officers and directors, from purchasing any financial instrument or entering into any transaction that is designed to hedge or offset any decrease in the market value of our stock, including exchange funds, prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, puts, calls, collars, forwards or short sales.

#### **Stock Ownership Guidelines**

The Executive Equity Compensation Program ("Equity Compensation Program"), established in 2006, was designed to provide a framework for annual grants of restricted stock and stock-settled stock appreciation rights under the Company's shareholder-approved equity plans, in order to promote the corporate objective of increasing executive stock ownership. Equity awards, if any, are granted to certain participants under the program based on guidelines established by the Committee.

As part of the Equity Compensation Program, the Board established stock ownership guidelines for its officers and directors, as described below:

## **Stock Ownership**

Tier 1 Officer 3 times annual salary
Tier 2 Officer 2 times annual salary
Tier 3 Officer 2 times annual salary
Tier 4 Officer 1 times annual salary
Board Members 5 times annual retainer

The Equity Compensation Program was designed to allow a participant to earn targeted ownership over a reasonable period, usually within five to seven years, provided individual and Company targets are achieved and provided the participant fully participates in the program. The CEO is a Tier 1 participant and each of the other named executive officers is a Tier 2 participant in the Equity Compensation Program. Tiers 3 through 5 are comprised of Bank officers, including line of business and support officers, senior managers and division heads, and other key contributors. Except for CEO Dennis S. Hudson, III, the named executive officers have not yet met the established stock ownership guidelines, since no equity awards were made in 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2012.

## **Impact of Deduction Limit**

Code Section 162(m) generally establishes, with certain exceptions, a \$1 million deduction limit for all publicly held companies on compensation paid to an executive officer in any year. The Committee gives strong consideration to the deductibility of compensation in making its compensation decisions for executive officers, balancing the goal of maintaining a compensation program which will enable the Company to attract and retain qualified executives with the goal of creating long-term shareholder value. The Committee reserves the right to pay executives' compensation that is not deductible under Section 162(m).

## **Results of Shareholder Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation**

In accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") and the Company's former status as a CPP participant, since 2009 the Company has annually included in its proxy a separate advisory vote on the compensation paid to its executives, as disclosed in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the compensation tables and related proxy disclosure, commonly known as a "say-on-pay" proposal. Our say-on-pay proposals received the majority approval of shareholders every year since 2009. Of the 88,251,626 votes cast on the say-on-pay proposal at the 2013 Annual Meeting (excluding broker non-votes), 66,299,293 votes were cast in favor of the resolution and 2,456,060 were cast against the resolution. The proposal was approved by a vote of 96.4 percent of the total number of votes cast on the proposal. The Company and the Committee have considered these results and concluded that a significant majority of the shareholders supported the Company's executive compensation program.

As noted above, following the end to the compensation restrictions under the CPP and in order to promote the Board's comprehensive plan to improve profitability in 2013 and beyond, the Committee adopted a new compensation program in 2013, which is being fully implemented in 2014. The Committee will continue to monitor best practices, future advisory votes on executive compensation and other shareholder feedback to guide it in evaluating the alignment of the Company's executive compensation program with the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

# **2013 COMPENSATION**

# **EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION**

The table below sets forth the elements that comprise total compensation for the named executive officers of the Company for the periods indicated.

## 2013 SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name and Principal Position	Salary Year (\$) <sup>(1)</sup>	Bonus (\$)	Stock Awards (\$) (2)	Options Awards (\$) (2)	Non-Stock Incentive Plan Com- Pensation (\$)	All Other Compensation (\$) (3)	Total (\$)
Dennis S. Hudson, III Chairman & Chief Executive Officer of Seacoast and the Bank	2013 \$500,000 2012 500,000 2011 500,000	\$ 138 	\$471,429 — 141,063	\$46,972 — —	_ _ _	\$26,151 21,197 8,703	\$1,044,690 521,197 649,766
William R. Hahl Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer of Seacoast and the Bank	2013 \$310,000 2012 310,000 2011 310,000	_ _ _	\$243,571 — 87,458	\$12,106 — —	_ _ _	\$23,392 24,269 14,001	\$589,069 334,269 411,459
David D. Houdeshell Executive Vice President & Chief Credit Officer of Seacoast and the Bank	2013 \$250,000 2012 225,000 2011 218,750	_ _ _	\$196,429 — 39,504	\$10,169 — —	_ _ _	\$12,913 11,742 5,018	\$469,511 236,742 263,272
Maria G. Frias Executive Vice President & Chief Risk Officer of Seacoast and the Bank	2013 \$175,000 2012 160,242	_	\$110,000 —	\$5,811	_	\$10,919 9,528	\$301,730 169,770
H. Russell Holland, III <sup>(4)</sup> Former Executive Vice President & Chief Lending	2013 \$165,118 2012 340,912(5 2011 290,901(5			_ _ _	_	\$146,232 37,781 24,266	\$311,350 378,693 394,417

Officer of Seacoast and the Bank

A portion of executive's base salary included in this number may have been deferred into the Company's Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, the amounts of which are disclosed in the Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Table for the applicable year. Executive officers who are also directors do not receive any additional compensation for services provided as a director.

Represents the aggregate grant date fair value as of the respective grant date for each award calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The assumptions made in valuing stock awards reported in this column are discussed in Note J to the Company's audited financial statements included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013. For additional information regarding such grants, see "Compensation Discussion and Analysis – Summary – 2013 Compensation" and "Elements of the 2013 Compensation Program for Executive Officers – Long Term Incentives." See also "2013 Grants of Plan-Based Awards" below.

- (3) Additional information regarding other compensation is provided in "2013 Components of All Other Compensation" below.
  - (4) Mr. Holland served as an executive officer of the Bank and the Company through July 19, 2013.
- (5) Of the base salary received by Mr. Holland in 2011 and 2012, \$10,001 and \$60,013, respectively, was paid in salary shares.

## 2013 COMPONENTS OF ALL OTHER COMPENSATION

Company Paid
Contributions to
Retirement
Savings
Plan

Name	Match	Discre- tionary Retire- ment	Company Paid Contributions to Executive Deferred Compen- sation Plan <sup>(1)</sup>	Premium on Supple- mental		Paid by Compar e into Cafeteri Plan	quisites	Consulting Payments	Total
Dennis. S. Hudson, III	\$5,100	\$5,100	\$ 9,900	\$ 3,179	\$ 2,322	\$ 550	_	_	\$26,151
William R. Hahl	\$5,100	\$5,100	\$ 2,300	\$ 3,484	\$6,858	\$ 550			\$23,392
David Houdeshell	\$5,000	\$5,000	_	\$ 979	\$ 979	\$ 550	\$405 (2)		\$12,913
Maria G. Frias	\$3,500	\$3,500	_	\$ 1,542	\$1,242	\$ 550	\$585 (2)	_	\$10,919
H. Russell Holland, III	\$3,502			\$ 1,420	\$439	\$ 275	\$8,960(3)	\$131,636 (4)	\$146,232

<sup>(1)</sup> Earned in reporting year, but contributed in following year. Also reported in the "Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Table."

(2) Personal use of Company-provided cell phone.

(3) Car allowance.

Mr. Holland served as an executive officer of the Bank and Company through July 19, 2013.

Represents payment for post-employment consulting services paid under the consulting agreement described below under "Employment and Change in Control Agreements – Former Executive Officer Agreement."

## 2013 GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

The following table sets forth certain information concerning plan-based awards granted during 2013 to the named executive officers.

		Equity Inc		111Waras				
					All Other Option		<b>Grant Date</b>	
Name	Grant Date	Threshold Target		Maximum	Awards: Number of Securities	Exercise or Base Price of Option	Fair Value of Stock and	
	Grant Date	(#) <sup>(1)</sup> (#) <sup>(1)</sup>		(#) <sup>(1)</sup>	Underlying Options	Awards (\$/Sh <sup>(1)</sup> )	Option Awards <sup>(2)</sup>	
					(#) <sup>(1)</sup>		(\$)	
Dennis S. Hudson, III	6/28/13	37,500	42,858	64,823	` ,		\$ 471,429	
	6/28/13				19,400	\$ 11.00	\$ 46,972	
William R. Hahl	6/28/13	19,375	22,143	33,491			\$ 243,571	
	6/28/13				5,000	\$ 11.00	\$ 12,106	
David Houdeshell	6/28/13	15,625	17,858	27,010			\$ 196,429	
	6/28/13				4,200	\$ 11.00	\$ 10,169	
Maria G. Frias	6/28/13	8,750	10,000	15,125			\$ 110,000	
	6/28/13				2,400	\$ 11.00	\$ 5,811	
H. Russell Holland, III	_	_	_			_	_	

(1) Adjusted for the reverse stock split that took effect on December 13, 2013.

Represents the aggregate grant date fair value as of the respective grant date for each award, calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The assumptions made in valuing stock awards reported in this column are discussed in Note J to the Company's audited financial statements included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

## **Employment and Change in Control Agreements**

The Company and the Bank currently maintain employment and change in control agreements with certain of the Company's executive officers, the terms of which are described in more detail below.

#### Employment Agreement with Mr. Hudson

The Bank entered into an employment agreement with Dennis S. Hudson, III on January 18, 1994. The employment agreement had an initial term of three years and provides for automatic one-year extensions unless expressly not renewed. This agreement was amended on December 31, 2008 to comply with Code Section 409A and the final regulations issued thereunder.

The employment agreement provides for hospitalization, insurance, long-term disability and life insurance in accordance with the Bank's insurance plans for senior management, and reasonable club dues. Mr. Hudson may also receive other compensation including bonuses, and he will be entitled to participate in all current and future employee benefit plans and arrangements in which senior management of the Bank may participate. In addition, the agreement contains certain non-competition, non-disclosure and non-solicitation covenants.

The employment agreement includes provisions for termination upon Mr. Hudson's death or permanent disability and also for cause, which includes willful and continued failure to perform the assigned duties, crimes, and breaches of the Bank's Code of Conduct.

The agreement also provides for termination upon the occurrence of a change in control. The change in control provisions in Mr. Hudson's employment agreement have been superseded by those in his change of control agreement discussed below.

For a further discussion of the payments and benefits to which Mr. Hudson would be entitled upon termination of his employment see "2013 Other Potential Post-Employment Payments."

## Change in Control Agreements with Mr. Hudson and Mr. Hahl

On December 24, 2003, the Company entered into change in control employment agreements with Dennis S. Hudson, III and William R. Hahl. The change in control agreements had initial terms of three years for Mr. Hudson and two years for Mr. Hahl, and provide for automatic one-year extensions unless expressly not renewed. A change in control must occur during these periods (the "Change in Control Period") to trigger the agreement. Mr. Hudson's agreement supersedes the change in control provisions in his employment agreement with the Bank.

The change in control employment agreements with Mr. Hudson and Mr. Hahl provide that, once a change in control has occurred, the executive subject to the contract (the "Subject Executive") and the Company agree to continue, for the Change in Control Period, the Subject Executive's employment in the same position as held in the 120-day period prior to the change in control. If the Subject Executive is terminated for "cause" or resigns "without good reason," as defined in the agreement, the Subject Executive will receive payment of the Subject Executive's base salary and unused vacation through the date of termination; and any previously accrued and deferred compensation (the "Accrued Obligations").

If the Subject Executive resigns for "good reason" or is terminated "without cause," or resigns for any reason during a 30-day period specified in the contract, the Subject Executive will receive:

the Accrued Obligations;

·a bonus equal to the highest bonus earned by the Subject Executive for the previous three full fiscal years ("Highest Bonus") multiplied by a fraction (the numerator of which is the number of days between January 1 and the Subject

Executive's date of termination and the denominator of which is 365);

an amount equal to what the Subject Executive's annual base salary plus Highest Bonus would have been over the Change in Control Period; and

health and other welfare benefits for the duration of the Change in Control Period.

In addition, all unvested stock options to acquire stock of the Company and all awards of restricted stock of the Company held by Subject Executive as of the date of termination shall be immediately and fully vested as of the date of termination and, in the case of stock options, shall be fully exercisable as of the date of termination.

For a further discussion of the benefits and payments provided for under these agreements see "2013 Other Potential Post-Employment Payments."

## Former Executive Officer Agreement

The Bank entered into an employment agreement with H. Russell Holland, III on January 2, 2007. Mr. Holland's employment agreement was similar to Mr. Hudson's employment agreement, which is described above, except that Mr. Holland's agreement entitled him to receive reasonable club dues and an automobile allowance. In addition, Mr. Holland's agreement provided that he may have terminated the contract within one year following the date of a qualifying change in control or if after a change in control, there was a change in duties and powers customarily associated with the office designated in such contract. Upon any such termination following a change in control, Mr. Holland would have been entitled to receive base salary, hospitalization and other health benefits for two years.

On July 10, 2013, the Company and H. Russell Holland, III entered into a separation agreement and general release outlining the terms of his termination of employment. The separation agreement amended his employment agreement to reduce the periods of the covenant not to compete and the covenant not to solicit employees from two years following termination of employment to one year. In addition, the Company agreed to accelerate the vesting of 55,810 shares (or 11,162 shares after adjusting for the Company's reverse stock split that took effect on December 13, 2013) of restricted stock granted to Mr. Holland by the Company. Mr. Holland did not receive any severance in connection with his termination of employment.

On July 10, 2013, the Company and Mr. Holland also entered into a consulting agreement which provided that Mr. Holland would perform certain services in exchange for consulting payments equal to \$26,320 per month, plus reimbursement of reasonable business expenses. The consulting agreement had a term of six months and included covenants relating to non-disclosure of the Company's confidential information.

# **OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR END 2013**

The following table sets forth certain information concerning outstanding equity awards as of December 31, 2013 granted to the named executive officers. This table includes the number of shares of Common Stock covered by both exercisable options, non-exercisable options or stock appreciation rights ("SARs"), and unexercised unearned options or SARs awarded under an equity incentive plan that were outstanding as of December 31, 2013. Also reported are restricted stock units and restricted stock awards, and their market value, that had not vested as of December 31, 2013.

	Option Aw	ards			Stock Awa	ards		
Name	Number o	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Option (#) <sup>(1)</sup>	Option Exercise Price (\$) <sup>(1)</sup>	Option Expiration Date		Value of Shares or Units of	Equity incentive plan awards: number of unearned shares, units or other rights that have not vested (#) (1)	Equity incentive plan awards: market or payout value of unearned shares, units or other rights that have not vested (\$)
D. Hudson, III	6,000		\$112.00	12/21/2014				
m	5,520 (4) 14,627(5) —	  19,400	\$ 133.60 \$ 111.10 \$ 11.00	05/16/2016 04/02/2017 06/28/2023	19,868(6)	\$ 242,390	42,858	7) \$ 522,868
W. Hahl	1,000 1,470 (4) 3,909 (5)		\$112.00 \$133.60 \$111.10 \$11.00	12/21/2014 05/16/2016 04/02/2017 06/28/2023	12,318(6)	\$ 150,280	22,143	() \$ 270,145
D. Houdeshell	_	4,200	\$11.00	06/28/2023	5,564 (6)	\$ 67,881		9) \$ 217,868
M. Frias	300	_	\$112.00	12/21/2014				

	580 (4) 1,201 (5)	  2,400	\$ 133.60 \$ 111.10 \$ 11.00	05/16/2016 04/02/2017 06/28/2023				
		_,	<b>,</b> 23,00		1,982	(6) \$ 24,180	10,000	(7) \$ 122,000
H. Holland, III	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_

(1) Adjusted for the reverse stock split that took effect on December 13, 2013.

<sup>(2)</sup> The named executive officer has full voting and dividend rights with respect to the restricted stock during the vesting period.

- (3) For the purposes of this table, the market value is determined using the closing price of the Company's Common Stock on December 31, 2013 (\$12.20).
- (4) Represents fully-vested stock-settled stock appreciation rights granted to the named executive officer on May 16, 2006.
- Represents fully-vested stock-settled stock appreciation rights granted to the named executive officer on April 2, 2007.

Represents time-vested restricted stock award of Common Stock granted to the named executive on August 23, (6)2011. As long as named executive officer remains employed by the Company, the shares will vest in their entirety on August 23, 2016.

Represents performance-vesting restricted stock units granted on June 28, 2013, representing the named executive officer's right to earn, on a one-for-one basis, shares of Common Stock. The awards are more fully described above under "Elements of the 2013 Compensation Program for Executive Officers—Portfolio Stock Awards (Performance-Vesting RSUs)".

## 2013 OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

The following table reports the exercise of stock options, and vesting of stock awards or similar instruments during 2013, granted to the named executive officers and the value of the gains realized on vesting.

Name	Stock Awards Number Malue Shares A Repaired on Vestingesting (#) (1) (\$)(2)				
Dennis S. Hudson, III	` '	\$ 40,394			
William R. Hahl	_	<u> </u>			
David Houdeshell		_			
Maria G. Frias	_	_			
H. Russell Holland, III	11.162	\$ 125,572			

- (1) Adjusted for the reverse stock split that took effect on December 13, 2013.
- (2) The value realized was determined using the closing price of the stock on the applicable vesting date.

## 2013 NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The following table discloses, for each of the named executive officers, contributions, earnings and balances during 2013 under the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, described below.

Name	Co	secutive ontributions in Last scal Year	Co La	egistrant ontributions in est Fiscal Year	Ea Fi	O	W	ggregate 'ithdrawals/ istributions )		
D. S. Hudson, III		_	\$	9,900	\$	148,340		_	\$ 631,421	(3)
W. R. Hahl	\$	45,427	\$	2,300	\$	100,453			\$ 422,218	(4)
D. Houdeshell (5)		_		_		_				
M. G. Frias (5)		_		_		_				
H. R. Holland, III				_	\$	2,061	\$	9,054 (6)		

<sup>(1)</sup> Total amount included in the All Other Compensation column of the Summary Compensation Table. This amount was contributable in 2013, but was credited to the account of the named executive officer in 2014.

- None of the earnings or dividends paid under the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan are above-market or preferential.
- (3) Includes \$230,238 contributed by the Company, as well as executive contributions, which were included in the Summary Compensation Table for previous years.
- (4) Includes \$37,199 contributed by the Company, as well as executive contributions, which were included in the Summary Compensation Table for previous years.
  - (5) Ms. Frias and Mr. Houdeshell are not participants in the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan.
- (6) Includes \$3,886 contributed by the Company, as well as executive contributions, which were included in the Summary Compensation Table for previous years.

## **Executive Deferred Compensation Plan**

The Bank's Executive Deferred Compensation Plan is designed to permit a select group of management and highly compensated employees, including two of the current named executive officers (Hudson and Hahl) and Mr. Holland prior to his resignation, to elect to defer a portion of their compensation until their separation from service with the Company, and to receive matching and other Company contributions that are precluded under the Company's Retirement Savings Plan as a result of limitations imposed under ERISA.

The Executive Deferred Compensation Plan was amended and restated in 2007 to reflect changes arising from requirements under Code Section 409A and the underlying final regulations. As a result, each participant account is separated into sub-accounts to reflect:

contributions and investment gains or losses that were earned and vested on or before December 31, 2004, and any subsequent investment gains or losses thereon (the "Grandfathered Benefits"); and

·contributions and earnings that were earned and vested after December 31, 2004 (the "Non-Grandfathered Benefits").

A participant's elective deferrals to the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan are immediately vested. The Company contributions to the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan vest at the rate of 25 percent for each year of service the participant has accrued under the Retirement Savings Plan, with full vesting after four years of service. If a participant would become immediately vested in his or her Company contributions under the Retirement Savings Plan for any reason (such as death, disability, or retirement on or after age 55), then he or she would also become immediately vested in his or her account balance held in the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan.

Each participant directs how his or her account in the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan is invested among the available investment vehicle options. The plan's investment options are reviewed and selected annually by a committee appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to administer the plan. The plan committee may appoint other persons or entities to assist it in its functions. No earnings or dividends paid under the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan are above-market or preferential.

All amounts paid under the plan are paid in cash from the general assets of the Company, either directly by the Company or via a "rabbi trust" the Company has established in connection with the plan. Nothing contained in the plan creates a trust or fiduciary relationship of any kind between the Company and a participant, beneficiary or other person having a claim to payments under the plan. A participant or beneficiary does not have an interest in his or her plan account that is greater than that of an unsecured creditor.

Upon a participant's separation from service with the Company, he or she will receive the balance of his or her account in cash in one of the following three forms specified by the participant at the time of initial deferral election, or a subsequent permitted amendment:

a lump sum;

monthly installments over a period not to exceed five years; or

a combination of an initial lump sum of a specified dollar amount and the remainder in monthly installments over a period not to exceed five (5) years.

A participant may change his or her existing distribution election relating to Non-Grandfathered Benefits only in very limited circumstances. Upon death of the participant, any balance in his or her account will be paid in a lump sum to his or her designated beneficiary or to his or her estate.

## 2013 other potential post-employment payments

The following table quantifies, for each of the named executive officers, the potential post-employment payments under the provisions and agreements described above under "Employment and Change in Control Agreements," assuming that the triggering event occurred on December 31, 2013. The closing market price of the Company's common stock on that date was \$12.20 per share. None of the named executive officers would be eligible for any of these payments if they were terminated for cause. The amounts shown for Mr. Holland in the following table represent amounts and benefits paid pursuant to his separation agreement, as described under "Employment and Change in Control Agreements – Former Executive officer Agreement" above.

Name	Term (in years (#)	Cash s)Severance (\$)	Value of Otl Annual Benefits (\$)	Total Value of Outstanding Stock Awards that Immediately Vest (\$)	0	Total Value of RBenefit (\$)
Dennis S. Hudson, III						
Upon Termination without Cause (1)	2 (2)	\$1,000,000	\$ 52,302	_	_	\$1,052,302
Upon Death or Disability (1)	2 (2)	1,000,000	52,302	\$765,257 (3)	\$ 23,280 (3	1,840,839
Upon Termination Following a Change-in-Control (4)	3	1,500,000	78,453	765,257	23,280	2,366,990
Upon Change-in-Control without Termination	_	_	_	765,257	23,280	788,537
William R. Hahl						
Upon Death or Disability		_	_	\$420,424 (3)	\$ 6,000 (3	\$ 426,424
Upon Termination Following a Change-in-Control (4)	2	\$620,000	\$ 46,784	420,424	6,000	1,093,208
Upon Change-in-Control without Termination		_		420,424	6,000	426,424
David Houdeshell						
Upon Disability						\$ 290,788
Upon Death	_			285,748 (3)	5,040 (3	290,788
Upon Termination Following a Change-in-Control	_			285,748 (3)	5,040 (3	290,788
Upon Change-in-Control without Termination	_			285,748 (3)	5,040 (3	290,788

Maria G. Frias

Upon Disability			_	\$ 146,180	(3) \$ 2,880	(3)	\$ 149,060
Upon Death	_		_	146,180	(3) 2,880	(3)	149,060
Upon Termination Following a Change-in-Control			_	146,180	(3) 2,880	(3)	149,060
Upon Change-in-Control without Termination			_	146,180	(3) 2,880	(3)	149,060
H. Russell Holland, III		_		_	_		\$125,572 (5)

As provided for in Mr. Hudson's employment agreement, the Bank would continue to pay to Mr. Hudson or his estate or beneficiaries his annual base salary, including any other cash compensation to which he would be entitled at termination date, for the period indicated under Term. In addition, the Bank would continue to pay the (1)hospitalization insurance premium (including major medical) for Mr. Hudson, his spouse and eligible dependents, as well as long-term disability and life insurance premiums for the term indicated or until his earlier death. In the

as well as long-term disability and life insurance premiums for the term indicated or until his earlier death. In the case of disability, the annual base salary shall be reduced by any amounts received by Mr. Hudson under the Bank's long term disability plan or from any other collateral source payable to disability, including social security benefits.

- (2) The initial term of agreement is three years with automatic renewal on each anniversary, but benefits under the agreement are paid for the Term as indicated in the table.
  - (3) As provided for in the award agreement and/or plan document.

As provided for in the respective change in control agreement, the Company shall pay the executive officer in a lump sum in cash within thirty (30) days after the date of termination the aggregate of the: (i) base salary through

the termination date to the extent not paid (assumed already paid in table above), (ii) annual bonus (prorated in the event that the executive was not employed by the Company for the whole of such fiscal year), and (iii) annual base salary and annual bonus, multiplied by the Term as indicated in the table. Annual base salary is equal to 12 times the highest monthly base salary paid or payable, including any base salary which has been earned but deferred, to the executive officer by the Company in the 12-month period immediately preceding the month in which the triggering event occurs. Annual bonus is equal to the executive officer's highest annual bonus for the last three full fiscal years prior to the triggering event. All unvested stock options and restricted stock of the Company held by the executive officer shall immediately and fully vest on termination. In addition, for the Term indicated, the Company will pay or provide to the executive officer or eligible dependents "Other Annual Benefits." "Other Annual Benefits" include Company-paid profit-sharing contributions, medical, prescription, dental, employee life, group life, accidental death and travel accident insurance plans and programs paid by the Company prior to the change in control. If the executive officer's employment is terminated by reason of death, disability, retirement or for cause within the term indicated following a change in control, no further payment is owed to the executive except for accrued obligations, such as earned but unpaid salary and bonus.

Mr. Holland served as an executive officer of the Bank and Company through July 19, 2013. As described under "Employment and Change in Control Agreements – Former Executive Officer Agreement" above, Mr. Holland's employment agreement was terminated pursuant to a separation agreement, which accelerated the vesting of

(5)55,810 shares (or 11,162 shares after adjusting for the Company's reverse stock split that took effect on December 13, 2013) of restricted stock granted to Mr. Holland by the Company but did not provide any severance to Mr. Holland. The amount listed in the table represents the value of the restricted stock on the date of vesting and is also reported in the 2013 Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table.

On July 10, 2013, the Company and Mr. Holland also entered into a consulting agreement which provided that he would perform certain services in exchange for consulting payments equal to \$26,320 per month, plus reimbursement of reasonable business expenses. The consulting agreement had a term of six months and included covenants relating to non-disclosure of the Company's confidential information. The amount paid to Mr. Holland under this agreement is included in the "All Other Compensation" column of the 2013 Summary Compensation Table.

#### 2013 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Prior to July 1, 2013, non-employee directors of the Company or the Bank were paid an annual retainer of \$23,000 for their service as directors of the Company and its subsidiaries. In addition to the annual retainer, non-employee directors received \$700 for each Board meeting attended, \$700 for each committee meeting attended and \$800 for each committee meeting chaired, including Bank committees. The members of the Audit Committee and Compensation and Governance Committee received an additional \$100 for each of these committee meetings attended and \$200 for each of these committee meetings chaired.

Effective July 1, 2013, the Board of Directors amended the director compensation policy and terminated all meeting fees. Under the new policy, all non-employee directors of the Company or the Bank are paid an annual retainer of \$75,000 for their service as directors of the Company and its subsidiaries. For Company directors, half of this annual retainer is paid in cash, and the remaining half is paid in the form of an annual stock grant under the 2013 Incentive Plan. Directors of the Bank board may elect to receive a lesser portion of their annual retainer in the form of stock. The Chair of the Audit Committee receives an additional annual retainer of \$15,000, and each of the Chairs of the Company's and Bank's other standing committees receives an additional annual retainer of \$10,000 for each committee chaired. All cash retainers are paid in quarterly installments.

The equity portion of the compensation earned by directors in 2013 was paid on March 18, 2014 in the form of a fully vested stock grant. Since these awards were made in 2014, they are not shown below in the 2013 Director Compensation Table, but instead will be reflected in the 2014 Director Compensation Table contained in the Company's 2015 proxy statement.

Non-employee directors are also reimbursed for their travel, lodging and related expenses incurred in connection with attending board, committee and shareholders meetings and other designated Company events. Executive officers who are also directors do not receive any compensation for services provided as a director.

## Lead Director Agreement

Under a separate three-year agreement with the Company which commenced on November 1, 2012, Lead Director Roger O. Goldman received an additional annual retainer of \$275,000, paid in a combination of cash, restricted stock, and other stock-based awards as mutually agreed by the Company and the Lead Director. Effective March 1, 2014, the Company entered into a new three-year agreement with Lead Director Goldman which replaces the former agreement and automatically renews for successive three-year terms on the first day of each month following the effective date. Under the new agreement, Lead Director Goldman continues to receive an annual retainer of \$275,000. He also received a stock option to purchase 200,000 shares of Seacoast Common Stock at an exercise price equal to the fair

market value of the stock on the grant date. The stock option vests on a pro rata monthly basis from March 1, 2014 to February 28, 2017. The stock option may become vested and exercisable as to one-half of the then-unvested shares in the event of Lead Director Goldman's death or disability. In addition, the option will become fully vested and exercisable upon the earliest of (i) the occurrence of a change in control (as defined in the agreement), or (ii) the termination of Lead Director Goldman's continuous service, or status as Lead Director, by the Company for any reason (including any situation in which he is not re-elected to the Company's Board or as Lead Director). Under both the 2012 and the 2014 agreements, Lead Director Goldman receives a \$20,000 annual housing allowance, is provided with office space in a Company-owned facility, and is reimbursed for all travel expenses, reasonable staff or customer entertainment expenses, and extraordinary use of his office staff.

The table below sets forth the total compensation paid to Board members who are not employees of the Company or the Bank for fiscal year 2013.

## 2013 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE

Name	Fees Earned or Paid in Cash (\$) <sup>(1)</sup>	All Other Compensation (\$)	Total (\$)
Dennis J. Arczynski	\$ 62,350		\$62,350
Stephen E. Bohner	\$ 63,350	_	\$63,350
John H. Crane (2)	\$ 57,900	_	\$57,900
T. Michael Crook	\$ 47,650	_	\$47,650
H. Gilbert Culbreth, Jr.	\$ 63,650	_	\$63,650
Julie H. Daum (3)	\$ 12,500		\$12,500
Christopher E. Fogal	\$ 67,450		\$67,450
Maryann Goebel (4)	\$ —		\$—
Roger O. Goldman	\$ 325,250	(5) \$ 20,000	(6) \$345,250
Robert B. Goldstein	\$ 53,350	(7) —	\$53,350
Dale M. Hudson	\$ 47,050	_	\$47,050
Dennis S. Hudson, Jr.	\$ 48,450		\$48,450
Thomas E. Rossin	\$ 64,250	_	\$64,250
Edwin E. Walpole, III	\$ 41,350		\$41,350

- A breakdown of the fees earned or paid in cash to each director is provided below in the table "Director Fees Earned or Paid in Cash".
- (2) Mr. Crane retired from the Board of Directors of the Company on July 16, 2013. He remains a director of the Bank.
- (3) Ms. Daum was elected to the Board in September 2013 and received a pro rata portion of the annual retainer for service as director in 2013.
- (4) Ms. Goebel was elected to the Board in February 2014 and accordingly received no compensation for service as a director in 2013.
- (5) Of the fees earned by Mr. Goldman in 2013, \$45,000 was deferred into the Company's Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan described below.

(6) Housing allowance.

(7) 80% of the compensation earned by Mr. Goldstein as a director is paid to CapGen Capital Advisors LLC.

#### 2013 DIRECTOR FEES EARNED OR PAID IN CASH

Name	Retainer for Service as Director (\$)	Retainer for Service as Lead Director (\$)	Chair Fees (\$)	Meeting Fees (\$)	Total Fees Earned or Paid in Cash (\$)
Dennis J. Arczynski	\$ 30,250	_	\$5,000	\$27,100	\$ 62,350
Stephen E. Bohner	\$ 30,250		\$5,000	\$28,100	\$ 63,350
John H. Crane	\$ 39,000		\$	\$18,900	\$ 57,900
T. Michael Crook	\$ 30,250		\$	\$17,400	\$ 47,650
H. Gilbert Culbreth, Jr.	\$ 30,250		\$5,000	\$28,400	\$ 63,650
Julie H. Daum	\$ 12,500		\$		\$ 12,500
Christopher E. Fogal	\$ 30,250		\$12,500	\$24,700	\$ 67,450
Maryann Goebel	\$ —		\$		_
Roger O. Goldman	\$ 30,250	\$ 275,000	\$	\$20,000	\$ 325,250
Robert B. Goldstein	\$ 30,250		\$5,000	\$18,100	\$ 53,350
Dale M. Hudson	\$ 30,250		\$	\$16,800	\$ 47,050
Dennis S. Hudson, Jr.	\$ 30,250		\$	\$18,200	\$ 48,450
Thomas E. Rossin	\$ 30,250		\$5,000	\$29,000	\$ 64,250
Edwin E. Walpole, III	\$ 30,250	_	\$	\$11,100	\$ 41,350

#### **Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan**

The Company has a Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan to allow each non-employee director of the Company and the Bank to defer receipt of his director compensation until his separation from service with the Company. Each participant directs how his account in the Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan is invested among the available investment vehicle options, including a Company stock fund ("Stock Account"). The plan's investment options are reviewed and selected annually by a Committee appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to administer the plan. No earnings or dividends paid under the Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan are above-market or preferential.

All amounts paid under the plan are paid in cash from the general assets of the Company, either directly by the Company or via a "rabbi trust" the Company has established in connection with the plan. Nothing contained in the plan creates a trust or fiduciary relationship of any kind between the Company and a participant, beneficiary or other person having a claim to payments under the plan. A participant or beneficiary does not have an interest in his plan account that is greater than that of an unsecured creditor.

Upon a participant's separation from service, the participant will receive the balance of his Stock Account in shares of Company Common Stock and the balance of his other plan accounts in cash in one of the following three forms specified by the participant at the time of initial deferral election:

a lump sum;

monthly installments over a period not to exceed five years; or

a combination of an initial lump sum of a specified dollar amount and the remainder in monthly installments over a period not to exceed five years.

Upon death of a participant, any balance in his account shall be paid in a lump sum to his designated beneficiary or to his estate.

#### COMPENSATION AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation and Governance Committee assists the Board of Directors with administering its responsibilities relating to the compensation of the Company's executive officers, including the chief executive officer. In addition, this Committee has overall responsibility for evaluating and approving the Company's compensation plans, policies and programs. The Compensation and Governance Committee operates under a written charter that was last revised effective on November 19, 2013. The Committee Charter is available on the Company's website at <a href="https://www.seacoastbanking.net">www.seacoastbanking.net</a>.

In 2013, the Compensation and Governance Committee was composed of seven directors, each of whom was determined to be independent pursuant to a review by the Committee. The Committee also serves as the compensation and governance committee of the Bank.

The Compensation and Governance Committee believes that it has taken the actions necessary and appropriate to fulfill its responsibilities under its charter. To carry out its responsibilities, the Committee held nine meetings in 2013.

In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the Compensation and Governance Committee reviewed with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required as part of this Proxy Statement, including a discussion of the quality and the clarity of disclosures contained therein. Based on this review and discussion, the Compensation and Governance Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement and the Company's annual report on Form 10-K. The Board has approved and ratified such recommendation.

This report shall not be deemed to be "soliciting material" or to be "filed" with the Securities Exchange Commission, nor shall this report be incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference this 2014 Proxy Statement into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under such Acts.

Compensation and Governance Committee:

H. Gilbert Culbreth, Jr., Co-Chair Robert B. Goldstein, Co-Chair Stephen E. Bohner Julie H. Daum Christopher E. Fogal Thomas E. Rossin

Edwin E. Walpole, III

#### CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS

**Related Party Transactions** 

The Board of Directors recognizes that related party transactions present a heightened risk of conflicts of interest and/or improper valuation (or the perception thereof) and therefore has adopted a policy to guide the Company in connection with all related party transactions. The policy is available on the Company's website at www.seacoastbanking.net. The Company defines a related party as:

any employee, officer, director or director nominee of the Company and/or its subsidiaries;

a shareholder (or group of affiliated shareholders) beneficially owning in excess of 5% of the Company (or its controlled affiliates);

a shareholder (or group of affiliated shareholders) with the right to designate a director or board observer to the Board of Directors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries;

an immediate family member of any of the foregoing; and

an entity which is owned or controlled by someone listed above, or an entity in which someone listed above has a substantial ownership interest or control of such entity.

The policy requires the Audit Committee or a majority of disinterested members of the Board to approve or ratify a transaction between the Company and any related party (including any transactions requiring disclosure under Item 404 of Regulation S-K under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934), other than:

transactions available on similar terms to all employees or customers generally;

transactions involving less than \$25,000 when aggregated with all similar transactions; and

·loans made by the Bank in the ordinary course of business, on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as, and following credit underwriting procedures that are not less stringent than, those prevailing at the time for comparable loans with parties not related to the lender, and not involving more than the normal risk of

repayment or presenting other unfavorable features, and in compliance with applicable law, including the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 and Regulation O of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

The Audit Committee is currently comprised of three directors, Christopher E. Fogal (Chair), T. Michael Crook and Maryann Goebel. Messrs. Fogal (Chairman), Culbreth and Crook were the members of the Audit Committee in 2013. None of the current or 2013 Audit Committee members is or has been an officer or employee of Seacoast or its subsidiaries and each is independent.

Director H. Gilbert Culbreth, Jr. is a controlling shareholder of Gilbert Ford, LLC, which furnished three new vehicles to the Bank in 2013 in exchange for payments totaling \$76,714. The disinterested members of the Audit Committee approved the acquisition of these goods and services. Seacoast believes the goods and services were commercially reasonable and comparable to similar transactions negotiated at arm's length between unrelated parties.

Director Dennis J. Arczynski is the principal and controlling shareholder of Dennis J. Arczynski & Co., LLP, which provided risk management and corporate governance consulting services to the Bank in 2011 totaling \$274,525. Seacoast believes the services were commercially reasonable and comparable to similar transactions negotiated at arm's length between unrelated parties.

Director T. Michael Crook's brother-in-law is a controlling shareholder of Mayfair Investments, which leases to the Bank 21,245 square feet of space adjacent to the Seacoast National Center in Stuart, Florida, pursuant to a lease agreement which expires in May 2014. The Bank paid rent of approximately \$270,236 on this property in 2013, of which Mr. Crook's brother-in-law's individual interest was \$45,940. Seacoast believes the terms of this lease are commercially reasonable and comparable to rental terms negotiated at arm's length between unrelated parties for similar property in Stuart.

Several of Seacoast's directors, executive officers and their affiliates, including corporations and firms of which they are directors or officers or in which they and/or their families have an ownership interest, are customers of Seacoast and its subsidiaries. These persons, corporations and firms have had transactions in the ordinary course of business with Seacoast and its subsidiaries, including borrowings, all of which, in the opinion of Seacoast's management and in accordance with the Bank's written loan policy, were on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unaffiliated persons and did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features. Seacoast and its subsidiaries expect to have such transactions on similar terms with their directors, executive officers, and their affiliates in the future.

As a federally insured bank, the Bank is subject to Regulation O, which governs loans to "insiders", defined as any executive officer, director or principal shareholder of the Company or the Bank, and their related interests. Regulation O limits loans to insiders and requires that the terms and conditions of credits granted to insiders are substantially the same as those extended to other customers of the Bank. The Bank's written loan policy requires compliance with the provisions of Regulation O.

The aggregate amount of loans outstanding by the Bank to directors, executive officers, and related parties of Seacoast or the Bank as of December 31, 2013, was approximately \$4,770,918, which represented approximately 2.4 percent of Seacoast's consolidated shareholders' equity on that date.

Certain Family Relationships

Certain members of the Company's Board of Directors and management are related. Dennis S. Hudson, Jr. and Dale M. Hudson are brothers. Dennis S. Hudson, III, the Company's Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, is the son of Dennis S. Hudson, Jr. and the nephew of Dale M. Hudson. As an executive officer, Dennis S. Hudson, III's compensation is approved by the Compensation and Governance Committee, which is comprised solely of independent directors.

COMPENSATION AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

During 2013, Messrs. Culbreth (Co-Chairman), Goldstein (Co-Chairman), Bohner, Fogal, Rossin and Walpole served as members of the Compensation and Governance Committee. Ms. Daum joined the Committee in November 2013. None of the Compensation and Governance Committee members is or has been an officer or employee of Seacoast or its subsidiaries, and each is independent for executive compensation purposes. During 2013, none of the members of the Compensation and Governance Committee had any relationship with the Company requiring disclosure under Item 404 of Regulation S-K. None of our executive officers served as a member of the Board of Directors or

compensation committee, or similar committee, of any other company whose executive officer(s) served as a member of our Board of Directors or our Compensation and Governance Committee.

Security	Ownership	of Management
and Cert	ain Benefic	ial Holders

The tables below provides information regarding the beneficial ownership of the Common Stock as of March 20, 2014 (the Record Date), by:

- ·each of the Company's directors;
- ·each of the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table;
- ·all directors and executive officers as a group; and
- ·each beneficial owner of more than 5%.

As of March 20, 2014, 25,985,761 shares of Common Stock were outstanding. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with SEC rules and regulations. Unless otherwise indicated, and subject to community property laws where applicable, the Company believes that each of the shareholders named in the tables below has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares indicated as beneficially owned. Some of the information in the tables is based on information included in filings made by the beneficial owners with the SEC.

Principal Shareholders (5% Owners Exclusive of Directors and Officers)

The following table sets forth information regarding the number and percentage of shares of Common Stock held by all persons and entities known by the Company to beneficially own 5% or more of the Company's outstanding Common Stock. The information regarding beneficial ownership of Common Stock by the entity identified below is included in reliance on a report filed by the entity with the SEC, except that the percentage is based upon the Company's calculations made in reliance upon the number of shares reported to be beneficially owned by the entity in such report and the number of shares of common stock outstanding on March 20, 2014.

Name of Beneficial Owner

Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership

Percentage

CapGen Capital Group III LP 5,470,090 (1) 21.1 %

280 Park Avenue

40th Floor West New York, NY 10017

Second Curve Capital, LLC

Thomas K. Brown

1,637,243 (2) 6.3 %

237 Park Avenue, 9th Floor

New York, NY 10017

According to the Form 4 filed jointly by CapGen Capital Group III, LLC ("CapGen LLC"), Eugene A. Ludwig and Robert Goldstein on March 20, 2014 with the SEC with respect to Company Common Stock beneficially owned by each as of March 18, 2014. CapGen LLC is the sole general partner of CapGen LP, and both entities have the sole voting and dispositive power with respect to all 5,470,090 shares of Common Stock. Eugene Ludwig is the (1)managing member of CapGen LLC and in such capacity has shared voting and dispositive power over all 5,470,090 shares of Common Stock. Mr. John Rose and Mr. Robert Goldstein, along with Mr. Ludwig, are the principal members of CapGen LLC (the "Principal Members"). While the Principal Members may be deemed to be the indirect beneficial owners of such shares, each disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares except for those shares that the individual holds directly.

According to a Schedule 13G/A filed jointly by Second Curve Capital, LLC ("Second Curve") and Thomas K. Brown on January 17, 2014, Second Curve and Mr. Brown have shared voting and dispositive power with respect to 1,637,243 shares of the Company's Common Stock. The Schedule 13G/A provides that Second Curve is an investment adviser, and a parent holding company or control person. In addition, the Schedule 13 G/A indicates that the shares of common stock listed on the Schedule 13G/A are owned of record by advisory clients of Second Curve and Mr. Brown, and that none of these clients is known to own more than 5% of the Company's Common Stock. The Schedule 13G/A also reports that Mr. Brown disclaims beneficial ownership of the Company's Common Stock reported in the Schedule 13G/A except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein.

### **Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers**

Name of Beneficial Owner	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership		Percentage	
Dennis J. Arczynski	21,698	(1)		
Stephen E. Bohner	26,534	(2)	*	
John H. Crane	8,151	(3)	*	
T. Michael Crook	56,904	(4)	*	
H. Gilbert Culbreth, Jr.	53,672	(5)	*	
Julie H. Daum	1,315			
Christopher E. Fogal	17,215	(6)	*	
Maryann Goebel	1,500			
Roger O. Goldman	56,190	(7)	*	
Robert B. Goldstein	5,470,426	(8)	21.1	%
Dale M. Hudson	371,937	(9)	1.4	%
Dennis S. Hudson, Jr.	315,257	(10)	1.2	%
Dennis S. Hudson, III	315,943	(11)	1.2	%
Thomas E. Rossin	9,939	(12)	*	
Edwin E. Walpole, III	89,779	(13)	*	
Maria G. Frias	3,825	(14)	*	
William R. Hahl	18,768	(15)	*	
David D. Houdeshell	1,000		*	
H. Russell Holland, III	0		*	
All directors and executive officers as a group (19 persons)	6,593,999		25.4	%

Includes 1,672 shares held in a limited liability company, as to which shares Mr. Arczynski has sole voting and investment power. Also includes 9,110 shares held jointly with his wife, as to which shares Mr. Arczynski may be (1)deemed to share both voting and investment power. Also includes 7,916 shares held in the Bank's Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan for which receipt of such shares has been deferred, and as to which shares Mr. Arczynski has no voting or dispositive power.

<sup>\*</sup> Less than 1%

<sup>(2)</sup> Includes 6,109 shares held in the Bank's Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan for which receipt of such shares has been deferred, and as to which shares Mr. Bohner has no voting or dispositive power.

Includes 7,259 shares held jointly with Mr. Crane's wife, as to which shares Mr. Crane may be deemed to share both voting and investment power.

Includes 17,800 shares held jointly with Mr. Crook's wife and 2,800 shares held by Mr. Crook's wife, as to which shares Mr. Crook may be deemed to share both voting and investment power. Also includes 26,931 shares held in the Bank's Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan for which receipt of such shares has been deferred, and as to which shares Mr. Crook has no voting or dispositive power.

Includes 26,000 shares held in a family limited liability company and 8,200 shares held in a family sub-S corporation, as to which shares Mr. Culbreth has sole voting and investment power. Also includes 1,000 shares held jointly with Mr. Culbreth's children and 10,200 shares held jointly with his wife, as to which shares Mr. Culbreth may be deemed to share both voting and investment power.

Includes 4,490 shares held jointly with Mr. Fogal's wife and 738 shares held by Mr. Fogal's wife, as to which shares

(6) Mr. Fogal may be deemed to share both voting and investment power. Also includes 626 shares held in the Bank's Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan for which receipt of such shares has been deferred, and as to which shares Mr. Fogal has no voting or dispositive power.

Includes 15,860 shares held in IRAs, as to which shares Mr. Goldman shares both voting and investment power with his wife. Also includes 1,200 shares held in a special needs trust of which Mr. Goldman's wife is trustee, as to which shares Mr. Goldman may be deemed to share voting and investment power and as to which Mr. Goldman

- (7) disclaims beneficial ownership. Also includes 24,347 shares held in the Bank's Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan for which receipt of such shares has been deferred, and as to which shares Mr. Goldman has no voting or dispositive power. Also includes 11,111 shares that Mr. Goldman has the right to acquire by exercising options that are exercisable within 60 days after the Record Date.
- Includes 5,470,091 shares held by CapGen LP, which is wholly owned by CapGen LLC. Mr. Goldstein is a principal and a member of the investment committee of CapGen LLC. Mr. Goldstein may be deemed to share both voting and investment power with respect to these shares, but disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares, except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein.
  - Includes 291,225 shares held by Monroe Partners, Ltd., a family limited partnership ("Monroe Partners"), of which Mr. Hudson and his wife, Mary T. Hudson, are general partners. Mr. Hudson may be deemed to share both voting and investment power with respect to such shares with the other general partner, but disclaims beneficial
- ownership, except to the extent of his 50 percent interest in Monroe Partners. Also includes 73,376 shares held jointly with Mr. Hudson's wife, as to which shares Mr. Hudson may be deemed to share voting and investment power. Also includes 7,191 shares held by Mr. Hudson's wife, as to which shares Mr. Hudson may be deemed to share voting and investment power and as to which Mr. Hudson disclaims beneficial ownership. Also includes 145 shares held in the Company's Retirement Savings Plan.
- Includes 224,356 shares held by Sherwood Partners, Ltd., a family limited partnership ("Sherwood Partners"), of which Mr. Hudson and his son, Dennis S. Hudson, III, are general partners, and Mr. Hudson and his children are limited partners. Mr. Hudson may be deemed to share voting and investment power with respect to such shares, but disclaims beneficial ownership, except to the extent of his 1.0% interest in Sherwood Partners.
  - Includes 224,356 shares held by Sherwood Partners, of which Mr. Hudson and his father, Dennis S. Hudson, Jr., are general partners. Mr. Hudson may be deemed to share voting and investment power with respect to such shares with the other general partners, but disclaims beneficial ownership, except to the extent of his 35.0 percent interest in Sherwood Partners and his beneficial interest in trusts having a 53.2 percent interest in Sherwood
- Partners. Also includes 49,386 shares held jointly with Mr. Hudson's wife which were pledged as security for a margin loan, as to which shares Mr. Hudson may be deemed to share voting and investment power. Also includes 31,784 shares held in the Company's Retirement Savings Plan, and 6,000 shares that Mr. Hudson has the right to acquire by exercising options that are exercisable within 60 days after the Record Date. Also includes 280 shares held by Mr. Hudson's wife as custodian for her son, as to which shares Mr. Hudson may be deemed to share both voting and investment power and as to which Mr. Hudson disclaims beneficial ownership.

- (12) Includes 200 shares held by Mr. Rossin's wife, as to which shares Mr. Rossin may be deemed to share both voting and investment power and as to which Mr. Rossin disclaims beneficial ownership.
- Includes 791 shares held jointly with Mr. Walpole's daughter and 810 shares held by a corporation in which Mr. Walpole is a principal, as to which shares Mr. Walpole may be deemed to share both voting and investment power. Also includes 188 shares held in the Bank's Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan for which receipt of such shares has been deferred, and as to which shares Mr. Walpole has no voting or dispositive power.
- Includes 1,136 shares held in the Company's Retirement Savings Plan and 2,389 shares held in the Company's (14) Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Also includes 300 shares that Ms. Frias has the right to acquire by exercising options that are exercisable within 60 days after the Record Date.
- Includes 11,240 shares held jointly with Mr. Hahl's wife and 78 shares held by Mr. Hahl as custodian for his granddaughters, as to which shares Mr. Hahl may be deemed to share both voting and investment power. Also includes 5,801 shares held in the Company's Retirement Savings Plan and 1,000 shares that Mr. Hahl has the right to acquire by exercising options that are exercisable within 60 days after the Record Date.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended requires the Company's directors and executive officers, and persons who beneficially own more than 10 percent of the Company's Common Stock, to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of Common Stock and other equity securities of the Company. Directors, executive officers and persons beneficially owning more than 10 percent of the Company's Common Stock are required to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they file. Based on the Company's review of such reports and written representations from the reporting persons, the Company believes that, during and with respect to fiscal year 2013, all filing requirements applicable to its directors, executive officers and beneficial owners of more than 10 percent of its Common Stock were complied with in a timely manner, except for:

The Form 4 for Roger O. Goldman filed on February 1, 2013 which reported the acquisition of 5,000 shares of Common Stock on January 29, 2013. The Company believes that the Form 4 filed on March 19, 2014 reflects Mr. Goldman's current holdings.

The Form 4 for Stephen E. Bohner filed on March 6, 2013 which reported the acquisition of 49,000 shares of Common Stock on March 1, 2013. The Company believes that the Form 4 filed on March 20, 2014 reflects Mr. Bohner's current holdings.

The Form 4 for Dennis S. Hudson, III filed on July 22, 2013 which reported the grant of an option to buy 97,000 shares of Common Stock on June 28, 2013. The Company believes that the Form 4 filed on January 14, 2014 reflects Mr. Hudson's current holdings.

The Form 4 for David D. Houdeshell filed on July 22, 2013 which reported the grant of an option to buy 21,000 shares of Common Stock on June 28, 2013. The Company believes that the Form 5 filed on January 29, 2014 reflects Mr. Houdeshell's current holdings.

The Form 4 for William R. Hahl filed on July 22, 2013 which reported the grant of an option to buy 25,000 shares of Common Stock on June 28, 2013. The Company believes that the Form 5 filed on January 30, 2014 reflects Mr. Hahl's current holdings.

The Form 4 for Maria Frias filed on July 22, 2013 which reported the grant of an option to buy 12,000 shares of Common Stock on June 28, 2013. The Company believes that the Form 4 filed on March 20, 2014 reflects Ms. Frias's current holdings.

The Form 4 for Edwin E. Walpole, III filed on November 15, 2013 which reported the acquisition of 44,500 shares of ·Common Stock on November 11, 2013. The Company believes that the Form 4 filed on March 20, 2014 reflects Mr. Walpole's current holdings.

#### PROPOSAL 2

#### RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee, acting pursuant to authority delegated to it by the Board of Directors, appointed Crowe Horwath LLP, an independent registered certified public accounting firm, as independent auditors for Seacoast and its subsidiaries on March 5, 2014 and has appointed Crowe Horwath LLP to serve as the Company's independent auditor for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2014. Although it is not required to do so, the Board of Directors is submitting the Audit Committee's appointment of Crowe Horwath LLP for ratification by the shareholders in order to ascertain the views of the shareholders regarding such appointment and as a matter of good corporate practice. If the shareholders should not ratify the appointment of Crowe Horwath LLP, the Audit Committee will reconsider the appointment.

Representatives of Crowe Horwath LLP will be present at the Annual Meeting and will be given the opportunity to make a statement on behalf of the firm, if they so desire, and will also be available to respond to appropriate questions from shareholders. Representatives of KPMG LLP will also be present at the Annual Meeting and will be available to respond to appropriate questions from shareholders.

All shares represented by valid proxies received pursuant to this solicitation and not revoked before they are exercised will be voted in the manner specified therein. If no specification is made, the proxies will be voted for the ratification of the appointment of Crowe Horwath LLP for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2014.

Ratification of this proposal requires approval by the affirmative vote of a majority of votes cast at the Annual Meeting.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" Proposal 2.

### Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee is currently comprised of three directors, Christopher E. Fogal (Chair), T. Michael Crook and Maryann Goebel. Messrs. Fogal (Chairman), Culbreth and Crook were the members of the Audit Committee in 2013 and the first quarter of 2014.

The purpose of the Audit Committee (the "Committee") is to assist the Board of Directors (the "Board") of Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida (the "Company") in its general oversight of the Company's accounting, auditing and financial reporting practices. Management is primarily responsible for the Company's financial statements, systems of internal controls and compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements. The Company's independent registered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP for the year ended December 31, 2013, is responsible for performing an independent audit of the consolidated financial statements and expressing an opinion on the conformity of those financial statements with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, as well as expressing an opinion (pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

The members of the Committee are not professional auditors, and their functions are not intended to duplicate or to certify the activities of management and the independent registered public accounting firm, nor can the Committee certify that the Company's registered public accounting firm is "independent" under applicable rules. The Committee serves a board-level oversight role, in which it provides advice, counsel and direction to management and the independent registered public accounting firm on the basis of the information it receives, discussions with management and the independent registered public accounting firm, and the experience of the Committee's members in business, financial and accounting matters. To carry out its responsibilities, the Committee held seven meetings in 2013.

In the performance of its oversight responsibilities, the Committee has reviewed and discussed with management and KPMG LLP the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2013. Management represented to the Committee that all financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and that these statements fairly present the financial condition and results of operations of the Company at the dates and for the periods described. The Committee has relied upon this representation without any independent verification, except for the work of KPMG LLP. The Committee also discussed these statements with KPMG LLP, both with and without management present, and has relied upon their reported opinion on these financial statements. The Committee's review included discussion with KPMG LLP of the matters required to be discussed under Public Company Accounting Oversight Board standards.

With respect to the Company's independent registered public accounting firm, the Committee, among other things, discussed with KPMG LLP matters relating to its independence and received from KPMG LLP the written disclosures and the letter required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the

independent accountant's communications with the Committee concerning independence.

On the basis of these reviews and discussions, and subject to the limitations of its role, the Committee recommended that the Board approve the inclusion of the Company's audited financial statements in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Audit Committee:

Christopher E. Fogal, Chairman T. Michael Crook H. Gilbert Culbreth, Jr.

March 5, 2014

#### RELATIONSHIP WITH INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

#### **Change in Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm**

On March 5, 2014, the Audit Committee approved the engagement of Crowe Horwath LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2014. Crowe Horwath LLP's engagement as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm commenced on March 5, 2014.

Effective March 20, 2014, the Audit Committee dismissed KPMG LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm.

During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, and the subsequent interim period through March 5, 2014, the Company has not consulted with Crowe Horwath LLP regarding either (i) the application of accounting principles to a specific transaction, either completed or proposed; or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the Company's consolidated financial statements, and neither a written report was provided to the Company or oral advice was provided that Crowe Horwath LLP concluded was an important factor considered by the Company in reaching a decision as to the accounting, auditing or financial reporting issue; or (ii) any matter that was either the subject of a disagreement, as that term is defined in Regulation S-K 304(a)(1)(iv) and the related instructions to Regulation S-K 304, or a reportable event, as that term is defined in Regulation S-K 304(a)(1)(v). The Company has not consulted Crowe Horwath regarding any accounting matter during the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

During the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, and from January 1, 2014 through March 20, 2014, there were no: (1) disagreements with KPMG on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedures, which disagreements if not resolved to their satisfaction would have caused them to make reference in connection with their opinion to the subject matter of the disagreement, or (2) reportable events, as that term is defined in Regulation S-K 304(a)(1)(v), except that as of December 31, 2013, management concluded that there was a material weakness in the Company's internal control over financial reporting because the Company did not have a control designed to provide for an effective review of the accounting for previously recorded charge-offs, a non-routine matter, related to a matured troubled debt restructured loan. This control deficiency resulted in a misstatement to the allowance for loan losses in the Company's third quarter earnings press release issued on October 28, 2013, and allowed for a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement would not have been prevented or detected on a timely basis. The Company filed a Form 8-K on November 12, 2013 updating and correcting the prior earnings press release, and the Company's Form 10-Q for the third quarter was filed with the corrected items on November 14, 2013. Although the error was corrected prior to the filing of the Company's third quarter Form 10-Q, management did not complete its evaluation of the control deficiency until the fourth quarter of 2013.

The Company provided KPMG LLP with a copy of the above disclosures and requested that KPMG LLP furnish the Company with a letter addressed to the SEC stating whether or not it agreed with the statements made above. A copy of KPMG's letter dated March 25, 2014 agreeing with the statements was attached as Exhibit 16.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the SEC on March 25, 2014.

#### **Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm's Fees**

The Company previously entered into an engagement agreement with KPMG LLP which set forth the terms by which KPMG LLP would perform audit services for the Company. KPMG LLP has advised the Company that neither the firm nor any of its partners has any direct or material interest in the Company except as auditors and independent certified public accountants of the Company.

The following table presents fees for professional audit services rendered by KPMG LLP in each of the last two fiscal years in each of the following categories, including expenses:

	2012	2013
Audit Fees (1)	\$640,500	\$787,000
Audit-Related Fees (2)	\$40,000	\$25,000
Tax Fees	\$0	\$0
All Other Fees	\$0	\$0

Includes the aggregate fees billed by KPMG LLP for professional services and expenses rendered for the audit of the Company's consolidated financial statements, reviews of consolidated financial statements included in the (1)Company's Forms 10-Q filed during the respective fiscal year, and audit of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Also includes the aggregate fees billed for professional services performed in connection with the Company's filing of certain registration statements and the related issuance of comfort letters and consents.

Includes the aggregate fees billed by KPMG LLP for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit of the Company's financial statements and are not reported under "Audit Fees." These (2) services primarily relate to audits of the Company's compliance with certain requirements applicable to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) assisted programs, and related attestation reporting thereon.

#### Pre-Approval Policy

Under the Audit Committee's Charter, the Audit Committee is required to approve in advance the terms of all audit services provided to the Company as well as all permissible audit-related and non-audit services to be provided by the independent auditors. All services set forth above under the captions "Audit Fees", "Audit-Related Fees", "Tax Fees", and "All Other Fees" were approved by the Company's Audit Committee pursuant to SEC Regulation S-X Rule 2-.01(c)(7)(i).

#### PROPOSAL 3

#### ADVISORY (NON-BINDING) VOTE ON COMPENSATION OF NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

In accordance with the Exchange Act, we are required to include in this Proxy Statement and present at the Annual Meeting a non-binding shareholder vote to approve the compensation of our named executive officers, as disclosed in this Proxy Statement pursuant to the compensation rules of the SEC. This Proposal, commonly known as a "say-on-pay" proposal, gives shareholders the opportunity to endorse or not endorse the compensation of the Company's named executive officers as disclosed in this Proxy Statement. The Proposal will be presented at the Annual Meeting in the form of the following resolution:

RESOLVED, that the holders of Common Stock of the Company approve the compensation of the Company's named executive officers as disclosed in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the compensation tables and related material in the Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting.

This advisory vote will not be binding on the Company's Board of Directors and may not be construed as overruling a decision by the Board of Directors or creating or implying any additional fiduciary duty on the Board of Directors. Nor will it affect any compensation paid or awarded to any executive. The Compensation and Governance Committee and the Board of Directors will take into account the outcome of the vote when considering future executive compensation arrangements.

The purpose of our compensation policies and procedures is to attract and retain experienced, qualified talent critical to our long-term success and enhancement of shareholder value. Seacoast's Board of Directors believes that our compensation policies and procedures achieve this objective.

This Proposal 3 requires approval by the affirmative vote of a majority of votes cast at the Annual Meeting.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" Proposal 3.

#### SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2015

To be considered for inclusion in the Company's proxy statement and proxy card for the 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, a shareholder proposal must be received at the Company's principal executive offices no later than December 10, 2014, which is 120 calendar days before the one-year anniversary of the date on which the Company first mailed this Proxy Statement.

If you do not wish to submit a proposal for inclusion in next year's proxy materials, but instead wish to present it directly at the 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, you must give timely written notice of the proposal to the Company's Secretary. To be timely, the notice (including a notice recommending a director candidate) must be delivered to the Company's principal executive offices no fewer than 60 nor more than 90 days before the one-year anniversary of the date of the Annual Meeting. To be timely, the written notice (including a notice recommending a director candidate) must be received no earlier than February 20, 2015 and no later than March 22, 2015. The notice must describe your proposal in reasonable detail and provide certain other information required by the Company's Articles of Incorporation. A copy of the Company's Articles of Incorporation is available upon request from the Company's Secretary.

#### **OTHER MATTERS**

Management of Seacoast does not know of any matters to be brought before the Annual Meeting other than those described above. If any other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, the persons designated as proxies will vote on such matters in accordance with their best judgment.

#### OTHER INFORMATION

**Principal Offices** 

The principal executive offices of Seacoast are located at 815 Colorado Avenue, P. O. Box 9012, Stuart, Florida 34995, and its telephone number is (772) 287-4000.

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Upon the written request of any person whose proxy is solicited by this Proxy Statement, Seacoast will furnish to such person without charge (other than for exhibits) a copy of Seacoast's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, including financial statements and schedules thereto, as filed with the SEC. Requests may be made to Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida, c/o Corporate Secretary, P.O. Box 9012, Stuart, Florida 34995.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

DENNIS S. HUDSON III Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

April 9, 2014